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Chairman and CEO’s Statement

Record operating result – strategic turning point 

For the Daetwyler Group, 2007 was an exceptional year in more ways than one. Operationally, all our 

divisions came up with high growth rates and by far the best results in their history, spanning up to 

90  years or more. Strategically, Daetwyler reached an important turning point with the sale of the 

Precision Tubes Division: we are now focusing our operations as an international multi-niche player on 

the industrial, construction and pharmaceutical markets with a technology portfolio based on rubber 

and electrical engineering.

Growing market share

During 2007, the environment was extremely positive in Daetwyler’s principal markets of Germany and 

Switzerland, in general, and in the construction and manufacturing industries, in particular. Supported 

by their strong niche positions, intensive market activities and successful growth projects, Daetwyler 

companies continued to capture market share and benefited disproportionately from the buoyant de-

mand. Expansion was accelerated by substantial sales successes in the growth markets of Eastern Europe, 

the Middle East and Asia. Net revenue increased 17.7 % to CHF 1 429.4 million from CHF 1 214.8 million 

a year earlier, with CHF 82.3 million or 6.8 % attributable to acquisitions, disposals and movements 

in exchange rates. Organic growth accounted for 10.9 %. These figures include the Precision Tubes 

Division, which was sold on 28 December 2007 and whose revenue has been excluded from the audit-

ed income statement. Net revenue from continuing operations rose 17.9 % to CHF 1 173.5 million from 

CHF 995.7 million in the previous year. 

Record profit performance at all levels

In 2007, Daetwyler delivered record profit performance at all levels, as in the preceding years. These 

results were driven by good capacity utilisation, further productivity improvements and increased 

manufacturing at facilities in low-cost countries. At the same time, they were fuelled by the Daetwyler 

companies’ success in winning customer projects yielding higher margins with innovative new system 

solutions. Operating profit (EBIT) climbed 52.1 % to CHF 136.9 million from CHF 90.0 million a year earlier. 

As a result, the EBIT margin reached 9.6 %, improving from 7.4 % and beating the target of 8 %. Profit for 

2007 came in at CHF 219.5 million, compared to CHF 76.5 million the year before, and can be broken 

down as follows:

Daetwyler has sharpened its focus by selling the Precision Tubes Division.
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 	� profit from operations (including the Precision Tubes Division) of CHF  108.0  million, up from 

CHF 76.5 million;

 	� a gain of CHF 111.5 million on the sale of the Precision Tubes Division.

Profit for the year from continuing operations, as reported in accordance with IFRS 5, was 

CHF 86.3 million compared to CHF 67.1 million in the previous year.

In place of a dividend, the Board of Directors will propose a profit distribution in the form of a par value 

repayment of CHF 4.95 per bearer share and CHF 0.99 per registered share for approval at the Annual 

General Meeting. This represents a payout ratio of 38.4 %.

 

Increasing competitiveness

The Daetwyler Group capitalised on the economic upswing over the past three years to increase its 

competitiveness in all the markets in which it operates. We are committed to continuously improving 

and designing our business models, processes and structures so that they will continue to function 

sustainably and profitably even in an economic slowdown. Here we differentiate between strategic 

measures at Group level and operational measures within the divisions. Through systematic interaction 

of these measures, we are seeking to strike a corporate balance that will allow us to steadily improve 

efficiency and profitability, while ensuring our ability to deliver innovation and growth.

Sale of the Precision Tubes Division

Strategically, we leveraged our position of strength built up over recent years to reduce the complexity 

of the Daetwyler Group and usher in a change during the year. Selling the Precision Tubes Division, 

operating as Rothrist, we disposed of the division that exhibited the least synergy with the rest of the 

Group. Furthermore, Rothrist was an SME player in a consolidated market and, as such, was confronted 

with very large, global organisations among its customers, competitors and suppliers. We found an ideal 

new owner in the form of the German-based Benteler Group, one of the world’s major independent 

automotive suppliers. As part of Benteler’s core business, Rothrist will benefit from the global purchasing 

and distribution network.

Focus on the industrial, construction and pharmaceutical markets

By selling Rothrist, Daetwyler has sharpened its focus as a Group. Offering a technology portfolio based 

on rubber and electrical engineering, we are now concentrating on attractive niches in the industrial, 

construction and pharmaceutical markets. In future, we are looking to capitalise more systematically on 

synergies existing within the Group. The disposal of Rothrist has set the stage for further investment and 

growth in our core areas of activity. Priority for driving growth through acquisitions is being placed on the 

Technical Components Division. Our strong balance sheet with an equity ratio of 70.9 % and a net cash sur-

plus of CHF 322.5 million gives us the ability to finance attractive acquisition opportunities. Nevertheless, 

the acquisition target must complement our own businesses in terms of product, market or value-added 

process. Despite our comfortable financial position, we exercise all due care in screening acquisition can-

didates. At the beginning of 2007, we successfully made two strategic acquisitions that added Revol and 

Proditec to the Technical Components Division and already contributed to profit during the first year.

Chairman and CEO’s Statement
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Organic growth as an operational priority

At operational level, the divisions are giving top priority to the initiatives to increase efficiency and 

organic growth. Here too, focusing is a fundamental requirement for sustaining profitable growth. Cur-

rent examples from the reporting year are the Cables Division’s sale of its fibre glass manufacturing 

facility and the Rubber Division’s sale of its sheet product segment. By disposing of subcritical oper

ations, we are clearing the way to allow management to concentrate on promoting our core business. In 

the process, we are taking advantage of the good environment to update the divisions’ strategies and 

optimise their organisational structures. With these measures, we are pursuing external and internal 

objectives by gearing our operational units to the specific needs of their markets, while continuing to 

improve the efficiency of our processes.

2007 AGM: capital reduction and share split – 2008 AGM: re-elections

The Annual General Meeting held on 24 April 2007 approved a 100-for-1 share split and the cancella-

tion of 10 000 of the total of 26 000 unissued (bearer) shares by reducing the share capital by CHF 5 mil-

lion. Both resolutions were carried into effect on registration in the Commercial Register on 2 July 2007. 

The new bearer shares of CHF 5 each were first traded on 6 July 2007. At the Annual General Meeting to 

be held on 22 April 2008, the Board of Directors will propose Ulrich Graf, Hanspeter Faessler and Ernst 

Odermatt for re-election for another four-year term.

Outlook and thanks

Having started the year with strong demand, we are optimistic that the environment in the industrial 

markets served by Daetwyler will remain good during 2008. This gives us confidence that we will be 

able to continue our track record of increasing both revenue and profit from operations for the year. An 

unexpected slowdown in economic growth in Europe would limit the growth potential of Daetwyler 

companies. However, looking to the medium term, we are convinced that the Daetwyler Group has the 

right strategic focus and a strong operational foundation to sustain profitable growth as a multi-niche 

player. It is first and foremost to our customers, most of whom have been in partnership with us for 

many years, that we owe our gratitude for this strong position. Our sincere thanks also go to our dedi-

cated employees who faced particular challenges during the year due to the high capacity utilisation. 

And we would like to thank our shareholders for their loyalty to Daetwyler.

On behalf of the Board of Directors	 On behalf of the Executive Board

Ulrich Graf, Chairman	 Dr. Paul J. Haelg, CEO

Chairman and CEO’s Statement
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	 Board of Directors

	 Ulrich Graf, born 1945 (1,2)

	 Chairman, term expires in 2008

	 Hans R. Rueegg, born 1946 (1)

	 Deputy Chairman, term expires in 2010

	 Hanspeter Faessler, born 1956 (2)

	 term expires in 2008

	 Werner Inderbitzin, born 1946 (2)

	 term expires in 2010

	 Ernst Lienhard, born 1946

	 term expires in 2010

	 Ernst Odermatt, born 1948 (1)

	 term expires in 2008

	 Franz Steinegger, born 1943

	 term expires in 2010

	 Franz J. Wuerth, born 1940

	 term expires in 2010

	 (1) Member of the Audit Committee 
	 (2) Member of the Human Resources Committee

	 All Directors are elected to hold office until the date of the Annual 
General Meeting in the year indicated.

	 Roland Zimmerli, born 1934

	 Honorary Chairman

	 Max Daetwyler, born 1929

	 Honorary Director

Directors and Officers at 31 December 2007

	 Executive Board

	 Paul J. Haelg, born 1954

	 Chief Executive Officer and Head of Technical 

Components Division

	 Silvio A. Magagna, born 1946

	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Johannes Mueller, born 1958

	 Head of Cables Division

	 Dirk Lambrecht, born 1960

	 Head of Rubber Division

	 Guido Wallraff, born 1963

	 Head of Pharmaceutical Packaging Division

	 Statutory and Group auditors

	 PricewaterhouseCoopers AG, Zurich



6

Operating Review

	 Daetwyler Divisions

	 Cables 
 	 Net revenue: organic growth of 20.6 % to CHF 271.2 

million from CHF 224.9 million, driven by intensive 
market activities, favourable economic conditions in 
the principal markets and successes in export markets.

 	 EBIT: leap in profit to CHF 20.6 million from CHF 6.7 
million to reach 7.6 % of net revenue, fuelled by in-
creased customer and market responsiveness and 
successful productivity enhancement measures.

 	 Revised strategy: positioning as a total provider of 
integrated solutions for electrical building infrastruc-
ture with cable-based and wireless technologies.

 	 Outlook for 2008: despite a slight slowdown in con-
struction activity in Western Europe, the division 
should be able to leverage its strengthened market 
position and keep growing profitably.

	 Rubber 
 	 Net revenue: up 9.5 % to CHF 153.9 million from 

CHF 140.5 million.

 	 EBIT: operating profit increased to CHF 12.3 million, 
up from the previous year’s figure of CHF 9.1 million 
excluding the effects of the fire in France, to reach 
8.0 % of net revenue. Including impairment charges 
in the NAFTA region, EBIT was CHF 8.7 million.

 	 Automotive sealing solutions: a manufacturing 
facility in Mexico will start operations in 2008 to 
strengthen competitiveness in the USA and rein-
force activities in the NAFTA region.

 	 The leading edge in innovation won the division 
a major long-term contract worth an annual 
CHF 30 million, which will be effective from 2008.

 	 Outlook for 2008: given the strong order book, the 
division should be able to continue to increase rev-
enue and earnings.

	 Precision Tubes 
 	 Net revenue: up 16.8 % to CHF 255.9 million from 

CHF 219.1 million, driven by intensive market activ
ities and stable steel prices.

 	 EBIT: surge to CHF 25.7 million from CHF 12.2 mil-
lion to reach 10.0 % of net revenue as a result of the 
volume growth being handled by almost the same 
number of employees. 

 	 Sale of all companies in the Precision Tubes Division 
to the German-based Benteler Group on 28 Decem-
ber 2007.

	 Daetwyler Group

 	 Daetwyler sharpened its focus by selling the Preci-
sion Tubes Division to the German-based Benteler 
Group (on 28 December 2007). The Group is now 
concentrating on the industrial, construction and 
pharmaceutical markets with a technology portfolio 
based on rubber and electrical engineering.

 	 Consolidated net revenue (including the Precision 
Tubes Division) grew 17.7 % to CHF 1 429.4 million 
from CHF 1 214.8 million, with CHF 58.5 million or 
4.8 % attributable to acquisitions and disposals and 
CHF 23.8 million or 2.0 % to movements in exchange 
rates. Organic growth accounted for 10.9 %. Net 
revenue from continuing operations increased 
17.9 % to CHF 1 173.5 million from CHF 995.7 million.

 	 Operating profit (EBIT) climbed 52.1 % to CHF 136.9 
million from CHF 90.0 million, improving the EBIT 
margin to 9.6 % from 7.4 %.

 	 Profit for 2007 reached CHF 219.5 million, up from 
CHF 76.5 million, and comprised CHF 108.0 million 
in profit from operations (including the Precision 
Tubes Division), versus CHF 76.5 million for the prior 
year, and a gain of CHF 111.5 million on the sale 
of the Precision Tubes Division. Profit for the year 
from continuing operations, as reported in accord-
ance with IFRS 5, was CHF 86.3 million compared to 
CHF 67.1 million the year before.

 	 The equity ratio at the end of 2007 was 70.9 %, and 
the net cash surplus was CHF 322.5 million.

 	 The number of employees, expressed as full-time 
equivalents, decreased to 4 265 at the end of 2007 
due to the sale of the Precision Tubes Division.

Acquiring Revol has strengthened Maagtechnic’s plastics processing capabilities.
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	 Pharmaceutical Packaging 
 	 Net revenue: 8.0 % increase to CHF 260.8 million 

from CHF 241.4 million, outpacing market growth in 
the non-cyclical pharmaceutical industry. 

 	 EBIT: up 9.7 % to CHF 29.4 million from CHF 26.8 mil-
lion to reach 11.3 % of net revenue.

 	 Renewal of existing supply contracts with key 
European and American customers for terms of up 
to five years.

 	 Extension of the Alken plant for high quality rubber 
products going according to plan.

 	 Outlook for 2008: supported by its strong market 
position and large order book, the division should 
benefit disproportionately from growth in the inter-
national pharmaceutical market.

	 Technical Components 
 	 Net revenue: up 25.2 % to CHF 491.1 million from 

CHF 392.1 million. Excluding the impact of acquisi-
tions and disposals, revenue growth was 10.1 %. 

 	 EBIT: increase of 45.2 % to CHF 48.8 million from 
CHF 33.6 million to reach 9.9 % of net revenue, 
driven by good capacity utilisation and the contribu-
tions from companies consolidated for the first time. 

 	 Strategic acquisitions (early 2007) of Revol in special-
ist distribution and Proditec in mail order distribu-
tion being integrated according to plan.

 	 Specialist distribution: integration of the machining 
and logistics operations of the former Basel plastics 
centre at the newly acquired French site.

 	 Mail order distribution: successful implementation 
of growth projects, such as product line expansion 
and Internet marketing.

 	 Outlook for 2008: the division should be able to le
verage the buoyant demand and its strong oper
ational base to keep increasing revenue and earnings. 

Operating Review

	 Daetwyler Holding Inc.

In CHF millions	 2007	 2006
Profit for the year	 221.8	 44.8
Investment income	 33.0	 31.0
Net finance income	 191.1	 14.9
Total assets (at 31 Dec.)	 700.6	 510.8

	 Profit distribution
	 In place of a dividend, the Board of Directors will 

propose that the Annual General Meeting on 22 
April 2008 approve a profit distribution in the form of 
a par value repayment of CHF 4.95 per bearer share 
and CHF 0.99 per registered share for 2007. This rep-
resents a payout ratio of 38.4 % of the Group profit 
for the year. On approval of this proposal, the par 
value of a bearer share will be reduced to CHF 0.05 
and the par value of a registered share to CHF 0.01. 
The amount representing the reduction in par value 
will be paid to shareholders on 14 July 2008.

	 Review of the 2007 Annual General Meeting
	 The Annual General Meeting held on 24 April 2007 

approved a 100-for-1 share split and the cancella-
tion of 10 000 of the total of 26 000 unissued (bearer) 
shares by reducing the share capital by CHF 5 mil-
lion. Both resolutions were carried into effect on 
registration in the Commercial Register on 2 July 
2007. This lowered the percentage of unissued 
shares held by the Company to below the 10 % limit 
stipulated in Art. 659 par. 1 of the Swiss Code of Ob-
ligations. The new bearer shares of CHF 5 each were 
first traded on 6 July 2007.
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Cables

Performance

The Cables Division, operating as Daetwyler Cables, significantly improved its market positioning, rev-

enue and profit again during 2007. Intensive marketing and market development activities both inside 

and outside Switzerland, favourable economic conditions still prevailing in the principal sales markets, 

and strong worldwide growth in elevator cabling business all combined to drive net revenue up some 

20.6 % to CHF 271.2 million from CHF 224.9 million a year earlier and brought gains in market share. 

Profit surges 

Operating profit (EBIT) exceeded previous expectations, coming in at CHF 20.6 million, up from 

CHF 6.7 million the year before, to represent 7.6 % of net revenue. This surge in profit was fuelled by 

increased market and customer responsiveness, continued expansion of systems business and suc-

cessful productivity enhancement measures. At the main Altdorf facility, the best-in-class project 

put in place to improve productivity allowed the additional volume to be handled without any not

able investments in new plant capacity. 

From separate cabling to electrical building infrastructure

Modern non-residential buildings have to offer their occupants a variety of basic functions. On top of 

that, they should be very flexible to meet different needs, while remaining cost-effective in day-to-

day operation. Cable-free or wireless technologies and modules are also becoming ever more popular 

for communications (including data networks), safety, elevators and building automation. Backed by 

its many years of experience in each of these segments, Daetwyler Cables has revised its strategy: the 

company is now set to position itself as a provider of integrated total solutions for electrical building 

infrastructure, optimising both wired and wireless technologies for the benefit of its customers.

Strong market position expanded in Europe 

Stepping up its marketing and market development activities, Daetwyler Cables gained significant 

market share in Switzerland, Germany and Austria on its way to becoming a total provider of elec

trical building infrastructure. In addition, its Swiss operations achieved the targeted breakthrough 

in data network systems (communications). Benefiting from the development work done in previous 

years, the division also posted further substantial successes in exports, especially in the Benelux region, 

Daetwyler Cables’ revised strategy is built on systems expertise.
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Poland, Ukraine, Italy and Spain. Data cabling business with OEM (original equipment manufacturer) 

customers, primarily based in Europe but operating globally, continued to flourish as well.

Customer awareness grows in the Near and Middle East

The efforts to open up the hotly contested growth markets in the Near and Middle East are pro-

gressing according to plan. Daetwyer Cables has considerably heightened customer awareness by 

winning several highly visible prestige projects. Like elsewhere, demand in this region was spurred 

by the global trend towards more stringent regulations for safety cabling systems in heavily fre-

quented non-residential buildings.

Groundwork laid for faster growth in Asia

The companies in China and Singapore posted their best revenue and profit figures ever. However, due 

to the restructuring carried out during the first half of 2007, the Shanghai plant fell short of the targeted 

growth rates. In South-East Asia, Daetwyler Cables laid the cornerstone to speed up expansion of busi-

ness in data network systems (communications) by developing suitable distribution partnerships.

Elevator cabling systems enjoy buoyant demand 

Through large customers, Daetwyler Cables has a global footprint in elevator cabling systems and 

accompanying cable harnessing services. In this vertical segment, it recorded some 30 % growth 

driven by buoyant demand in Europe and Asia. While custom solutions are still sought-after for 

high-rise buildings at the top end of the market, there is a clear trend towards standardised elevator 

cabling in the lower market segments. 

Outlook

During 2008, we anticipate a slight slowdown in construction activity in Western Europe, while 

above-average expansion should continue in the growth markets. Against this backdrop, Daetwyler 

Cables should be able to leverage its strengthened market position and keep growing profitably.

270

230

190

150

110
	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007

Cables highlights
Net revenue in CHF millions

Cables

Amounts in CHF millions	 2006	 2007

Net revenue	 224.9	 271.2

EBIT	 6.7	 20.6

EBIT as % of net revenue	 3.0	 7.6

Net operating assets (NOA)	 123.7	 136.6

Gross capital expenditure	 5.8	 4.5

Number of employees (FTEs)	 778	 781
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	 Strategy

	 The Cables Division, operating as Daetwyler 
Cables, is a leading provider of high quality system 
solutions and services for electrical building infra-
structure, including data networks, safety cabling 
systems, elevator cabling systems, and now build-
ing automation.

	 Target groups

	Manufacturing industry

	Banks / insurance companies

	Telecom carriers / cable TV companies

	Public utilities / power generators and suppliers

	Public authorities

	Campuses

	Railway companies / transport infrastructure  
providers / airports

	General contractors

	 Installers

	Elevator manufacturers

	Electrical wholesalers

	Electricians

	 Products and services

	 Data networks (copper and fibre optic systems)
	System solutions for local area networks (LAN), 

optimised for easy installation and maximum 
operational safety and reliability.

	 Brands: unilan®, uninet®, hypern®, optofil®, 
optoversal®, optomod®

	System solutions for city and access networks, 
enabling telecom carriers, cable operators and 
metropolitan network providers to connect 
customers to their wide area networks (WAN) 
cost-effectively.

	 Brands: optofil®, optoversal®, telefil®

Safety cabling systems
	Comprehensive one-stop safety technology and 

solutions for power supply and data transmission. 
Used worldwide, proven time and again.

	Pyrofil® – halogen-free safety cables with functional 
integrity and improved performance in case of fire.

	Pyrosys® – certified support systems and accessories 
for cable installations with functional integrity in 
case of fire.

	Ecobus® – the future-proof, intelligent cabling 
system for building automation.

Elevator cabling systems
	Complete system solutions and services for 

electrical installation of elevators.
	 Brand: Dynofil®

Cable harnessing
	Cable assembly and logistics systems for the elevator, 

plant and mechanical engineering industries.

Cables

Elevator cabling systems enjoyed particularly strong demand in 2007.
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Cables
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Rubber

Performance

The Rubber Division, operating as Daetwyler Rubber, generated net revenue growth of 9.5 % to 

CHF 153.9 million from CHF 140.5 million a year earlier, outpacing the growth in the markets served. 

Fuelled by high capacity utilisation, increased manufacturing at facilities in low-cost countries and 

ongoing initiatives to optimise production processes, operating profit (EBIT) before impairment 

charges in the NAFTA region increased to CHF 12.3 million, up from the previous year’s figure of 

CHF 9.1 million excluding the effects of the fire in France. This represents an operating EBIT margin 

of 8.0 % compared to 6.5 % the year before. Including the impairment charges, EBIT stood at CHF 8.7 

million, resulting in an EBIT margin of 5.7 % versus 4.7 % a year earlier.

Sharper customer focus – stronger market presence

Daetwyler Rubber hosted an informative event for customers at the Schattdorf engineering centre 

in Switzerland to mark the end of dealing with the aftermath of the 2005 flooding. During 2007, the 

new state-of-the-art production equipment and processes at the Swiss manufacturing facility pro-

vided the ideal platform to expand the partnerships with key account customers. A broad-based 

customer survey showed that Daetwyler Rubber is on the right track with its efforts in the areas of 

quality and innovation. 

Automotive sealing and vibration control solutions in demand

Modern vehicles need to meet ever rising environmental, safety and comfort standards. Fuel and 

brake circuits, cooling and air-conditioning systems, and engine, gearbox and steering lubrication 

systems require sealing and vibration control solutions that satisfy a wide variety of demands. This 

means that innovative sealing solutions using moulded rubber components are a growth sector, 

even in stagnating automotive markets. Leveraging this potential, Daetwyler Rubber achieved 

another sharp increase in revenue and profit in this market segment during 2007 even though the 

plant in the USA still has to contend with difficult conditions in the American market. In a bid to 

improve the situation and reinforce operations in the NAFTA region, Daetwyler Rubber is opening 

a manufacturing facility in Mexico during 2008. The preliminary work is well advanced. Having 

integrated the Czech production facility faster than expected, Daetwyler Rubber already completed 

the planning work for a significant plant extension before the year was out.

Innovative moulded rubber seals and vibration dampeners for internal combustion engines. 
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Rubber highlights
Net revenue in CHF millions

Focus on special seals and gaskets for construction

In its operations with special seals and gaskets for building construction and civil engineering, 

Daetwyler Rubber benefited from the good construction activity in its principal markets of Germany 

and Switzerland during 2007. Emphasis in building construction business was placed on focusing 

operations and enhancing profitability. Daetwyler Rubber now has only a distribution company 

present in France and also sold the small sheet product segment. The civil engineering and tunnel-

ling business won new prestige projects on all five continents and continued to consolidate its leading 

market position. To cope with the strong demand, Daetwyler Rubber stepped up its collaboration with 

distribution and conversion partners in America, the Middle East and Asia. 

Healthy project pipeline

As announced in the Interim Report 2007, Daetwyler Rubber’s projects during the year included 

significant investments to lay the groundwork for a major long-term contract which will be effective 

from 2008. The final agreement was signed in January 2008. When mass production gets fully 

underway, the annual volume is expected to reach more than CHF 30 million.

Outlook

Supported by a new organisational structure in place since the beginning of 2008, Daetwyler Rubber 

will sharpen its focus on clearly defined market niches. Given the large order book, we are confident 

that Daetwyler Rubber will continue its profitable growth during 2008.

Rubber

150

130

110

90

70
	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007

Amounts in CHF millions	 2006	 2007

Net revenue	 140.5	 153.9

EBIT	 6.6	 8.7

EBIT as % of net revenue	 4.7	 5.7

Net operating assets (NOA)	 96.0	 96.1

Gross capital expenditure	 15.6	 7.8

Number of employees (FTEs)	 993	 1 038
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	 Strategy
	

The Rubber Division, operating in the market as 
Daetwyler Rubber, is a leading specialist in rubber 
technology. Delivering high quality, high-tech 
products, Daetwyler Rubber provides innovative, 
custom designed sealing, insulation and vibration 
control solutions. Daetwyler Rubber is a global 
development partner and recognised component 
maker for the automotive supply, construction 
and other industries.

	 Target groups

	 Automotive system suppliers 

	 Construction industry

	 Packaging industry

	 Tool industry

	 Component manufacturers

	

Products and services

	 Custom designed solutions developed and manu-
factured to solve customers’ problems and meet 
their needs for precision moulded rubber com-
ponents and specialised extruded products. The 
range encompasses products made from com-
pounds of all common elastomers, or combin
ations of compounds, and composites of rubber 
bonded to or reinforced with metal, plastic, fabric 
or fibre composites. Materials are developed, 
manufactured and processed using any type of 
elastomer, including fluororubber, fluorosilicone, 
highly temperature resistant EPDM, ethylene 
acrylate elastomers, liquid silicone and nitrile rubber.

	 Automotive (moulded rubber components)
	 Applications

	 Fuel and engine management

	 Brake booster diaphragms

	 ABS and master cylinder

	 Brake actuation

	 Disk brakes

	 Comfort and safety (air conditioning, airbags etc.)

	 Construction (extruded products)
	 Building construction applications

	 Window seals

	 Door and gate seals

	 Fire resistant profiles

	 Curtain wall seals, optionally co-extruded

	 Load-bearing glazing profiles for rail vehicles

	 Civil engineering applications

	 Gaskets for single shell tunnelling

	 Joint seals

	 Hydrophilic seals

	 Injection hoses

	 Special pipe seals and gaskets

	 Industry (moulded rubber components)
	 Applications

	 Machinery and appliances

	 Packaging industry

	 Tool industry

	 Pipe joints

	 Transport and vehicle manufacturing

	 Defence engineering

	 Household appliances

Rubber

Daetwyler Rubber’s construction products focus on sophisticated special seals and gaskets.
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Precision Tubes

Performance

2007 was the best year ever in the 75-year history of the Precision Tubes Division, operating as 

Rothrist. Driven by intensive marketing and market development activities, net revenue rose 16.8 % 

year on year in a relatively stable environment, advancing to CHF 255.9 million from CHF 219.1 mil-

lion. This increase was the result of substantial volume growth since the steel prices fluctuated 

less than in previous years and did not materially impact sales revenue. This applied to both the 

product segments for long tubes and for further processed automotive tube components. Particu-

larly dynamic growth was seen in industrial applications, especially hydraulic cylinder tubes.

Profit surges on improved productivity

Vast productivity improvements enabled Rothrist to handle the volume growth with almost the same 

number of employees. The company was also able to pass on most of the increases in raw material 

costs to customers. These factors together resulted in a surge in operating profit (EBIT) to CHF 25.7 mil-

lion, compared to CHF 12.2 million a year earlier, raising the EBIT margin to 10.0 % from 5.6 %.

Capacity expansions in Switzerland

Rothrist Tube (Switzerland) Inc. achieved another marked improvement in productivity during 2007. 

Applying its superior materials and process expertise, the company continued to optimise various 

stages of production and again succeeded in measurably increasing the level of quality. In response 

to the strong demand, Rothrist significantly expanded its annealing capacities in summer 2007. In 

addition, another further processing line has also been on stream since January 2008, which has 

extended the swaging capacity for drive shaft tubes by 50 %.

Turnaround in Germany

During the year, Rothrist Rohr (Deutschland) GmbH reaped the fruit of the 2006 restructuring pro-

gramme and made an impressive turnaround. The Bottrop plant recorded the highest output since 

its inception. Its results also showed a small profit again. Rothrist intends to use the opportunity and 

bring about a sustainable consolidation. To lay the foundation for this, the company will continue to 

broaden its product portfolio and implement more measures to enhance efficiency.

Further processing adds value to precision tubes.
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Sale to the Benteler Group

As announced in the 2007 Interim Report, the Daetwyler Group’s Board of Directors and Executive 

Board evaluated the strategic options for the Precision Tubes Division. It became apparent that a 

sale would be the best solution for the long term. At the end of November 2007, Daetwyler signed 

an agreement to sell all the companies in the Precision Tubes Division to Benteler Stahl / Rohr GmbH, 

a German company based in Paderborn. Following the unconditional approval of the competition 

authorities, the deal was completed on 28 December 2007. The Daetwyler Group is convinced that 

the Benteler Group is the ideal owner for Rothrist. As part of Benteler’s core business, Rothrist will 

benefit from the global purchasing and distribution network. With the existing potential for gener-

ating synergies, the company has a good platform to continue its profitable growth. The Benteler 

Group is one of the world’s large independent automotive suppliers and ranks among Europe’s 

leading manufacturers and stockholders of steel tubes. With 22 000 employees and facilities in 150 

locations, Benteler generates some EUR 5 600 million in revenue.

Precision Tubes highlights
Net revenue in CHF millions

Precision Tubes

250

210

170

130

90
	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007

Amounts in CHF millions	 2006	 2007

Net revenue	 219.1	 255.9

EBIT	 12.2	 25.7

EBIT as % of net revenue	 5.6	 10.0

Net operating assets (NOA)	 180.8	 196.2

Gross capital expenditure	 5.9	 10.8

Number of employees (FTEs)	 553	 545
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Precision Tubes

	 Strategy
	
	 Operating as Rothrist, the Precision Tubes Division 

is committed to being the technology leader and 
expanding its strong global position as a supplier of 
precision tubes for gas springs, vehicle parts, struc-
tural members and shock absorbers for automotive 
applications. These efforts are founded on proactive 
marketing and market development, manufacturing 
facilities second to none in the industry and a com-
prehensive range of additional tube processing ser
vices to meet customers’ specific requirements.

	 Target groups

	 Car manufacturers

	 Automotive system suppliers

	 Component manufacturers

	 Products and services

	 Welded and cold drawn precision tubes in bulk

	 Optimised to suit customers’ specific applications 
and processing methods

	 Available in standard and custom lengths

	 Extensive additional processing capabilities

	 Automotive applications
	 Anti-roll bars

	 Drive shafts

	 Axle shafts

	 Assembled camshafts

	 Gas springs

	 Steering components 

	 Suspension struts

	 Hydraulic cylinders

	 Axles

	 Shock absorbers

	 Piston rods

	 Gear shafts

	 Safety restraint systems

	 Other applications
	 Motorcycle forks

	 Gas springs for office chairs and other applications

	 Hydraulic cylinders

	 Profile tubes for drive shafts, e.g. in agricultural 
machinery

	 Tubes for hydroforming

	 Overload clutches

	 Other custom industrial applications, e.g. for 
extruded and other mass-produced components

Precision tubes from Rothrist stand for top quality.
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Precision Tubes
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Pharmaceutical Packaging

Performance

The Pharmaceutical Packaging Division, operating as Helvoet, continued to grow during 2007. Net 

revenue in this non-cyclical business rose 8.0 % to CHF 260.8 million from CHF 241.4 million a year 

earlier, with organic growth outpacing the pharmaceutical industry’s market growth of 5 % to 

6 %. Operating profit (EBIT) came in at CHF 29.4 million, 9.7 % ahead of the previous year’s figure 

of CHF 26.8 million. However, the EBIT margin fell short of expectations at 11.3 %, as compared to 

11.1 %, because of higher labour costs. Results were also adversely impacted by the unfavourable 

situation persisting in the raw materials market, coupled with rising energy prices.

Expanding key account business

Helvoet Pharma used the year to keep expanding business with major strategic customers. For 

example, the ten-year supply agreement with Hospira Inc., the American pharmaceutical and medi-

cation delivery company, successfully kicked in and existing supply contracts with key European and 

American customers were renewed for terms of up to five years. Working in close collaboration with 

a customer, Helvoet Pharma also brought a project in the challenging vaccine market to fruition 

with a successful market launch. In addition to its day-to-day business, Helvoet Pharma established 

a functional organisational structure with a team of key account managers responsible for world-

wide relationships with large pharmaceutical customers. Since mid-2007, the company has been run 

by Guido Wallraff, a manager with marketing and sales experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

Broadening the product line

The division enhanced the range of high quality rubber products by continuing to develop its 

successful, strategically important Omniflex product line. The third generation of products fea-

turing Omniflex coating will be launched on the market in the first half of 2008. These products 

are mainly targeted at manufacturers of modern biopharmaceutical substances administered in 

pre-filled syringes and drug delivery systems that need to meet the strictest quality requirements. 

In response to the steadily growing demand, Helvoet Pharma brought a new Omniflex production 

line on stream during the year. Another capacity increase is scheduled for 2008.

The quality of aluminium caps for injectable drugs is inspected fully automatically.
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Enhancing productivity and quality

Besides innovation, Helvoet Pharma is seeking to enhance productivity sustainably at all of its 

facilities. With the assistance of external industry experts, the company implemented programmes 

during the year to increase the efficiency of the existing product lines. The resulting savings in 

labour costs will gradually have an impact in 2008. In all of its plants, Helvoet Pharma also continued 

to upgrade its quality assurance system for primary and secondary packaging components. These 

efforts focused on the use of the most advanced machine and mould technology coupled with 

state-of-the-art automatic inspection systems. With these in place, the company is able to proactively 

meet the rising demands placed on rubber packaging components by the pharmaceutical industry.

Expansion investments underway

2007 also saw the start of work on the planned extension at the Alken plant. Construction will 

last until the second half of 2008. The new processes and procedures for manufacturing rubber 

products in a clean room environment will answer the latest market needs and were designed in 

consultation with large pharmaceutical customers before construction began. When the extension 

project is completed, the Alken plant will be one of the world’s most modern facilities for manufac-

turing rubber-based pharmaceutical packaging. This will give Helvoet Pharma the ideal production 

platform to accelerate profitable growth as targeted.

Outlook

With sales in more than 80 countries, over 1 300 motivated employees worldwide and a strong 

order book, the division has a solid foundation. We are confident that Helvoet Pharma will benefit 

disproportionately from growth in the international pharmaceutical market during 2008.

Pharmaceutical Packaging highlights
Net revenue in CHF millions

Pharmaceutical Packaging
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	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007

Amounts in CHF millions	 2006	 2007

Net revenue	 241.4	 260.8

EBIT	 26.8	 29.4

EBIT as % of net revenue	 11.1	 11.3

Net operating assets (NOA)	 267.1	 347.6

Gross capital expenditure	 39.9	 36.5

Number of employees (FTEs)	 1 247	 1 317
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	 Strategy

	 Operating as Helvoet Pharma, the Pharmaceutical 
Packaging Division is one of the world’s leading 
suppliers of rubber, plastic and aluminium closures 
for injectable drugs, diagnostics and drug delivery 
systems. These activities are built on well estab-
lished partnerships with all the major pharmaceutical 
companies, a global presence and a strong focus 
on innovation.

	 Target groups

	 Manufacturers and contract fillers of injectable 
drugs

	 Manufacturers of diagnostic products

	 Manufacturers of parenteral drug delivery systems

	 Products and services

	 Rubber and aluminium / plastic products for 
pharmaceutical packaging

	 Serum and lyophilisation stoppers for injection vials

	 Plungers, tip caps and needle shields for prefilled 
syringes

	 Plungers and lined aluminium seals for dental 
cartridges

	 Stoppers for infusion bottles and discs for bottle 
packs

	 Aluminium caps with rubber liner (lined seals)

	 Plastic bottle pack caps (with or without rubber liner)

	 Plastic hangers for infusion bottles

	 Rubber products for diagnostics and drug 
delivery systems

	 Stoppers and needle shields for blood collection 
systems

	 Plungers for infusion pumps

	 Components for aerosol containers

	 Plungers for disposable syringes

	 Injection sites for IV administration sets

	 Value-added product benefits
	 Omniflex-plus coating for rubber components to 

improve compatibility and cleanliness

	 Ready-for-Sterilisation (RfS) rubber components re-
quiring no pretreatment by the customer

	 Ready-for-Use (RfU) gamma sterilised rubber com-
ponents and aluminium caps

	 Quality certificates

	 Studies for determining extractables and leach
ables in rubber components

Pharmaceutical Packaging

Clean room conditions ensure high quality pharmaceutical packaging components.
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Pharmaceutical Packaging
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Technical Components

Performance

During 2007, the Technical Components Division reaped the benefits of the restructuring 

programmes completed the year before. With its strong operational base, the division was able to 

capitalise fully on the good economic climate, increasing net revenue by 25.2 % to CHF 491.1 million 

from CHF 392.1 million a year earlier. Excluding the impact of the Revol and Proditec acquisitions at 

the beginning of 2007 and the disposal of Daetwyler i/o devices in mid-2006, the division posted 

revenue growth of 10.1 %. Driven by good capacity utilisation and the contributions from Revol and 

Proditec, operating profit (EBIT) climbed 45.2 % year on year to CHF 48.8 million from CHF 33.6 million.

Acquisitions accelerate the pace of growth

In business-to-business distribution, a critical company size is a crucial factor on both the customer 

and supplier sides. At the same time, the market is still highly fragmented so the industry is going 

through consolidation across Europe. As a leading Swiss specialist distributor (Maagtechnic) and 

mail order distributor (Distrelec) occupying positions with good prospects in Central and Eastern 

Europe, the Daetwyler Group will selectively embrace opportunities that arise for attractive acqui-

sitions and accelerate the pace of growth. At the beginning of 2007, Daetwyler successfully made 

strategic acquisitions in both segments. Specialist distributor Maagtechnic took over the French 

Revol Group (Rhône-Alpes region / France and Czech Republic) with revenue of some CHF 50 mil-

lion, while mail order distributor Distrelec was able to acquire Proditec, a Swiss company generating 

about CHF 25 million in revenue.

Maagtechnic realises synergies from Revol integration

The specialist distribution business, operating as Maagtechnic, saw a marked upturn in sales across 

all markets during 2007. Bolstered by the five new Revol locations in France and Eastern Europe, 

Maagtechnic took a major step forward to becoming a pan-European player. Revol’s integration and 

the active efforts to realise the synergy potential are going according to plan. The machining and 

logistics operations of the plastics centre previously situated in Basel are currently being incorporated 

into the newly acquired manufacturing facility in France. There the new central warehouse and the 

enlarged production shop for machining plastic semi-finished products in St. Marcellin will be up 

and running from spring 2008. Established business in the OEM (original equipment manufacturer) 

Maagtechnic offers a wide range of fluid systems in its product portfolio.
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and MRO (maintenance, repair, operations) markets also developed dynamically. Maagtechnic’s 

success in winning major projects, for example in electronics and connector technology, reflect its 

good strategic position. 

Distrelec implements successful growth projects

The mail order distribution business, operating as Distrelec, enjoyed extremely brisk demand in 2007 

and captured market share, especially in Germany. Distrelec magnified the impact of the favourable 

economic trend by systematically implementing various growth projects, such as adding 9 000 

products to the portfolio and stepping up the Internet marketing efforts in all countries served 

by the division. Operations in the growth markets of Eastern Europe performed particularly well, 

with focus on Hungary, Poland, the Czech Republic, Slovakia and Romania. While enjoying strong 

demand, Distrelec’s electronic and computer product segments are still faced with constant pres-

sure on prices and margins. This means that it has to continually improve productivity and optimise 

the product mix. By acquiring Swiss-based Proditec, Distrelec was able to reinforce the computer 

product segment on both the marketing and purchasing sides. Its integration went according to 

plan and yielded the first synergies, including the merger of Proditec’s management and product 

management with Distrelec Switzerland.

Outlook

We are optimistic that Maagtechnic and Distrelec will be able to leverage their strong operational 

base and keep increasing revenue and earnings. Looking to 2008, we expect the buoyant demand to 

continue and anticipate further synergy benefits from the integration of the companies acquired. 

Technical Components highlights
Net revenue in CHF millions

Technical Components
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	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007

Amounts in CHF millions	 2006	 2007

Net revenue	 392.1	 491.1

EBIT	 33.6	 48.8

EBIT as % of net revenue	 8.6	 9.9

Net operating assets (NOA)	 290.3	 369.4

Gross capital expenditure	 6.1	 8.3

Number of employees (FTEs)	 843	 1 112
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	 Strategy

	 The Technical Components Division supplies engin
eering and electronic components based on solid 
expertise in specialist and mail order distribution to 
industry, small and medium-sized businesses, retail-
ers / resellers and technical schools. The specialist 
distribution segment is positioning itself as a distri-
bution, service and manufacturing business.

	 Target groups

	 Industrial companies

	 Small to medium-sized businesses

	 Retailers / resellers

	 Technical schools

	 Products and services

	 The Technical Components Division, comprising 
the Maagtechnic and Distrelec Groups, is a leading 
business-to-business supplier of engineering and 
electronic components in Switzerland and neigh
bouring countries. Its wide range, encompassing 
300 000 standard components, automated interfaces 
with customers and in-depth application know
ledge combine to assure customers of cost-effective 
order processing and complete solutions tailored to 
their needs.

	 Specialist distribution / Maagtechnic
	 Rubber and plastic components

	 Fluid and power systems

	 Electronic components and connectors

	 Work safety, tools and consumables

	 Conceptual planning, design and manufacturing 
of fully finished custom engineered components 
and subsystems

	 Mail order distribution / Distrelec
	 Active and passive components

	 Electromechanical components

	 Automation

	 Computer accessories and peripherals

	 Networking products

Technical Components

Logistics and process expertise are key ingredients to Maagtechnic’s and Distrelec’s success.
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Technical Components
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Environment

	 Certifications and memberships

	 Based on these core ecological values, eight Daet-
wyler companies have obtained the ISO 14 001 cer-
tificate: Daetwyler Cables, Kaved and Maagtechnic 
in Switzerland, Rothrist in Switzerland and Germany, 
and Helvoet Pharma in Belgium, Germany and Italy. 
Other companies are working towards ISO environ-
mental certification. Daetwyler Cables and Kaved 
in Switzerland and Helvoet Pharma in Belgium are 
certified to OHSAS 18 001 – Occupational Health and 
Safety. The Swiss companies in the Rubber, Cables 
and Precision Tubes Divisions have been members 
of the Swiss Energy Agency for Industry (EnAW) 
since 2002, 2003 and 2006 respectively. On behalf 
of the Swiss Federal Office for the Environment, the 
Agency recognised them last year for achieving the 
voluntary reduction of CO2 emissions set out in the 
target agreement. 

	 Highlights in 2007

	 The report focuses on the four divisions engaged in 
industrial manufacturing. The CO2 emissions only 
cover direct emissions from our operations, but not 
indirect emissions resulting from the generation of 
the energy consumed. Over the four-year period 
from 2004 to 2007, resource consumption per 
CHF 1 000 unit of product value (pv) dropped for 

all materials. The dramatic decrease seen in some 
cases is mainly explained by the very high capacity 
utilisation of the production facilities. As a result, 
there was a marked increase in product value in re-
lation to the productive area in the Cables, Rubber 
and Precision Tubes Divisions during 2007.

	 Cables Division  
(Altdorf manufacturing facility, Switzerland)

 	 In 2007, the Cables Division successfully completed 
a recertification audit at the Altdorf manufacturing 
facility. This was a combined quality, safety and 
environmental management audit.

  	The most important single measure during the year 
was the work already started in 2006 to renovate the 
roof of a factory building, totalling CHF 4.7 million in 
capital expenditure. This will reduce the amount of 
energy required to heat the building by 10 % to 15 %.

 	 Specific resource consumption and CO2 and VOC 
emissions per CHF 1 000 unit of product value (pv) 
decreased for all materials over the four-year period 
from 2004 to 2007. In addition to the high capacity 
utilisation, specific initiatives taken in previous 
years have had a positive impact on drinking and 
industrial water consumption. 

		  2007	 2004
Extra light fuel oil	 MWh/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.040	 0.087
Electricity	 MWh/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.117	 0.180
Drinking and  
industrial water	 m3/CHF 1000 of pv	 4.947	 9.355
Compressed air	 m3/CHF 1000 of pv	 60.589	 81.197
CO2	 kg/CHF 1000 of pv	 11.600	 24.395
VOC (solvents)	 kg/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.020	 0.057

	

Core values

Daetwyler Group companies understand and live up to their responsibility to protect the environment, com-
plying with all applicable legislation. Furthermore, we make every reasonable effort to minimise identifiable 
risks. Specifically, this means that when choosing resources and production processes, we are committed to 
finding the most environmentally friendly materials and techniques that will have the least possible impact 
on the environment when the products are manufactured, used and ultimately disposed of. 

Daetwyler Rubber is committed to safe disposal of waste rubber from its processes.
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	 Rubber Division  
(Schattdorf manufacturing facility, Switzerland)

 	 The sale of the sheet product segment led to a dis-
proportionate decline in electricity requirements 
and VOC emissions. In addition, the new machines 
and equipment purchased to replace those dam-
aged in the 2005 flood are more energy efficient.

 	 During the year, the division completed the plan-
ning for a wood heating system, which is scheduled 
to come into operation in autumn 2008. With a 
total output of 12 500 megawatt-hours per annum, 
the wood heating system will save 1.25 million 
litres of fuel oil and 3 300 tonnes of CO2. By install-
ing this, Daetwyler is making an active contribution 
to climate protection.

 	 Specific resource consumption and CO2 and VOC 
emissions per CHF 1 000 unit of product value (pv) 
decreased substantially over the four-year period 
from 2004 to 2007. 
 
		  2007	 2004
Extra light fuel oil	 MWh/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.052	 0.100
Electricity	 MWh/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.153	 0.204
Compressed air 	 m3/CHF 1000 of pv	 71.530	 96.712
Drinking and  
industrial water	 m3/CHF 1000 of pv	 10.469	 14.805 
CO2	 kg/CHF 1000 of pv	 23.739	 42.967
VOC (solvents)	 kg/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.251	 0.534

 
Precision Tubes Division  
(Swiss and German manufacturing facilities) 

 	 During the year, the Precision Tubes Division suc-
cessfully completed a recertification audit at both 
the Swiss and German manufacturing facilities. This 
was a combined quality and environmental man-
agement audit. 

 	 At the German facility, a new fully automatic, dim-
mable lighting control system for the production 
shops has resulted in a saving in electricity.

 	 Further improvements to the rinse tank control sys-
tem and pickling operations at the Swiss facility have 
significantly reduced specific water consumption.

 	 Having been connected to natural gas in 2006, the 
Swiss facility switched the first of three annealing 
furnaces over from propane to natural gas during 
the year. This will bring a further reduction in CO2 
emissions in future.

 	 Specific resource consumption and CO2 and VOC 
emissions per tonne of product are given for both 

manufacturing facilities. However, it must be borne 
in mind that fuel oil is only used in Switzerland. 
Consumption of all resources dropped over the 
four-year period from 2004 to 2007. 

		  2007	 2004
Extra light fuel oil  
(Switzerland only)	 MWh/t of product	 0.020	 0.044
Electricity	 MWh/t of product	 0.365	 0.419
Propane and  
natural gas 	 MWh/t of product 	 0.428	 0.504
Total energy 	 MWh/t of product	 0.808	 0.951
Drinking and  
industrial water	 m3/t of product	 1.570	 2.501
CO2	 kg/t of product	 94.227	 113.864
VOC (solvents)	 kg/t of product	 1.465	 2.670	

	 Pharmaceutical Packaging Division (Belgian, 
German and Italian manufacturing facilities)

 	 Following an analysis of energy saving potential 
conducted by external experts, the Belgian manu-
facturing facility initiated a number of improve-
ments. These include the implementation of a new 
lighting concept and additional heating element in-
sulation on the vulcanisation lines. In addition, heat 
from the catalytically treated exhaust gases will 
now be used for heating process water. All vulcan-
ised rubber waste is recycled.

 	 During the year, the German facility successfully 
underwent a repeat audit.

 	 In Italy, the manufacturing facility in Pregnana 
near Milan increased its vulcanised rubber waste 
recycling rate to 96 %. In 2008, the manufacturing 
facility in Montegaldella will also start a recycling 
scheme for vulcanised rubber waste.

 	 Specific resource consumption and CO2 emissions 
per CHF 1 000 unit of product value (pv) at the main 
Belgian manufacturing facility did not show any 
significant change over the four-year period from 
2004 to 2007 even though changes in product mix 
and manufacturing technologies require more elec-
tricity and water.

		  2007	 2004
Natural gas 	 MWh/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.061	 0.059
Electricity	 MWh/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.118	 0.131
Drinking and  
industrial water	 m3/CHF 1000 of pv	 0.669	 0.655
CO2	 kg/CHF 1000 of pv	 11.184	 10.818	

Environment
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Our People

	 Human resources development

	 The markets in which the Daetwyler Group operates 
call for a highly trained workforce undergoing con-
tinuous development and improvement. Some of 
our initiatives to train young people are reflected in 
the 177 apprenticeships offered by Daetwyler Group 
companies worldwide. We support training and re-
training programmes to develop the technical and 
social skills of employees at all levels in the hierarchy. 

	 Highlights in 2007

	 Cables and Rubber Divisions
 	 Participation in the pay comparison survey conduct-

ed by Swissmem, the Association of Swiss Mechan
ical and Electrical Engineering Industries, showed 
that equal pay for men and women is a reality in the 
Cables and Rubber Divisions. By continuously raising 
the awareness of managers, the Cables and Rubber 
Divisions play a significant role in promoting equal-
ity of men and women in the work process.

	 Precision Tubes Division
 	 In an employee survey conducted at its Swiss facil-

ity, the Precision Tubes Division saw a marked im-
provement in employee satisfaction compared with 
previous surveys. 

	 Technical Components Division
 	 Maagtechnic held a number of workshops on 

“Management in Change” to prepare its managers 
for the introduction of SAP. In its German com
pany, Maagtechnic also launched a voluntary scheme 
to increase the weekly working time to 40 hours 
with profit-sharing for employees who participate. 
More than 70 % of the workforce is participating in 
this programme.

	 Social responsibility
	
	 The Daetwyler Group has had its roots and head-

quarters in the Canton of Uri ever since its inception. 
This is also the home of the charitable Daetwyler 
Foundation established in 1990 by brothers Peter 
and Max Daetwyler. Endowed with CHF 25.3 million, 
the foundation does not own any shares in Daet-
wyler Holding Inc. or have any influence over the 
management of the Daetwyler Group. The purpose 
of the Daetwyler Foundation is to support charit
able initiatives in the areas of art, architecture, cus-
toms and traditions; education and training; natural 
sciences, humanities and social sciences; physical 
training, and nature, heritage and environmental 
conservation. Since its beginnings, the foundation 
has awarded CHF 5.3 million in grants. Of the total 
amount distributed, CHF 4.3 million or about 81 % 
has gone to applicants in the Canton of Uri or to 
individuals and institutions having close ties with 
Uri. The foundation’s policy is to concentrate the 
funds available for distribution. In this spirit, a sum of 
CHF 0.446 million was awarded last year.

Core values 

Independent, well-trained, proactive and motivated employees are our Company’s most valuable asset. 
Motivation, training and leadership are primarily the responsibility of managers. This means that selecting, 
training and briefing people with a managerial role have high priority. Daetwyler fosters a culture of open 
communication at all hierarchical levels. And part of this is regular dialogue between management and 
employee representatives. 

Our customers value our competent and motivated workforce at all levels.
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Corporate Governance at 31 December 2007

Group structure and shareholders

The Daetwyler Group is an international multi-niche 
player dedicated to industrial component supply 
and distribution of engineering components. With 
a technology portfolio based on rubber and elec-
trical engineering, the Group focuses on attractive 
niches in the construction, industrial and pharma-
ceutical markets.

Substantial shareholders and ownership
Pema Holding AG owns all 22 million registered 
shares and 4.4 million of the total of 12.6 million 
bearer shares of Daetwyler Holding Inc. This rep-
resents 80 % of the voting rights and 51.8 % of the 
share capital. Unissued shares have been included 
in calculating the percentage of capital held but 

excluded in calculating the percentage of voting 
rights held. The reason is that unissued shares carry 
no votes. 

The entire share capital of Pema Holding AG was con-
tributed to Daetwyler Fuehrungs AG, indirectly giving 
it a majority of the voting rights in Daetwyler Holding 
Inc. Daetwyler Fuehrungs AG is owned by its Direct
ors who are elected by co-optation and are also Dir
ectors of Pema Holding AG and Daetwyler Holding 
Inc. They acquired equal shares in the CHF 0.1 million 
share capital of Daetwyler Fuehrungs AG at par value 
and are subject to clear rules under a shareholders’ 
agreement. On leaving the Board, they transfer their 
shares to their successors at par value. This arrange-
ment was made to provide a sound legal framework 
to ensure that the majority of votes in Daetwyler 

As a company committed to creating long-term value, Daetwyler has a clear framework of management 
and control policies in place to ensure compliance with the principles of good corporate governance. These 
policies are set out in the Articles of Association (www.daetwyler.ch > Our Company > Organisation) and the 
Rules of Organisation and Business Conduct of Daetwyler Holding Inc. They are presented below following 
the applicable Directive issued by the SWX Swiss Exchange. Where appropriate, reference is made to issues 
that are discussed in detail in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Where information required 
under a section of the SWX Directive has been omitted, it is either not applicable or not material to Daetwyler.

Shareholders’ agreement
between the shareholders of

Daetwyler Fuehrungs AG, who are also
Directors of Pema Holding AG

and Daetwyler Holding Inc.

Daetwyler Fuehrungs AG
Share capital of CHF 0.1 million

Pema Holding AG
Share capital of CHF 1.1 million (holds 80% of votes/

51.8 % of capital in Daetwyler Holding Inc.)

Free float
20 % of votes / 48.2 % of capital

Daetwyler Holding Inc.
Share capital of CHF 85 million (incl. unissued shares)
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Holding Inc. are controlled by the top management.
The Board of Daetwyler Holding Inc. is not aware of 
any other shareholders, or groups of shareholders 
subject to voting agreements, who hold more than 
3 % of the total voting rights.

Group structure and companies
The required disclosures relating to the Group 
structure are presented on the following pages of 
the Annual Report:

 	� Page 118 ff: directory of Group operations.

 	� Page 61 ff: segment reporting in accordance 
with IFRS.

 	 �Page 98 f: detailed list of subsidiaries and invest-
ments.

 	� Page 115 ff: details of Daetwyler Holding Inc., the 
listed company, in the Share Information and 
General Information sections.

No listed companies are included in the consolida-
tion of Daetwyler Holding Inc. There are no cross-
shareholdings with other companies.

Capital structure

Composition of share capital in CHF millions at 
31 December 2007:

22 000 000 registered shares of CHF 1 each 	 22.0
12 600 000 bearer shares of CHF 5 each 	 63.0 
(including 1 600 000 unissued shares  
under former Swiss Corporation Law)
Total ordinary share capital	 85.0
Authorised share capital	 none
Authorised but unissued share capital	 none
Participation certificates	 none
Profit-sharing certificates	 none
Registration and voting restrictions	 none
Opting-out and opting-up provisions	 none

2007 capital reduction
On the Board’s proposal, the Annual General Meet-
ing of Shareholders of Daetwyler Holding Inc. held 
on 24 April 2007 passed a resolution to cancel 10 000 
unissued bearer shares of CHF 500 each, thereby re-
ducing the Company’s share capital by CHF 5.0 mil-
lion from CHF 90.0 million to CHF 85.0 million. This 
has reduced the proportion of treasury shares to 
9.41 %, i.e. below the 10 % threshold stipulated in Art. 
659 par. 1 of the Swiss Code of Obligations.

2007 share split
The Annual General Meeting on 24 April 2007 also 
passed a resolution to split the shares on 6 July 2007. 
The remaining 126 000 bearer shares of CHF 500 
each have now been split into 12 600 000 bearer 
shares of CHF 5 each and the 220 000 registered 
shares of CHF 100 each into 22 000 000 registered 
shares of CHF 1 each. 

The reduction in share capital and share split were 
registered in the Commercial Register on 2 July 2007.

Corporate Governance
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All shares are fully paid-up. With the exception of 
unissued shares (1 600 000 bearer shares, see note 
32 on page 92), all shares are entitled to vote and 
rank for dividend. Information about changes in 
equity for 2007 and 2006 is presented in the state-
ment of changes in equity on page 47. Changes in 
equity for 2006 und 2005 are shown in the state-
ment of changes in equity on page 47 of the Annual 
Report 2006.

Convertible bonds and share options
Daetwyler had no bonds or convertible bonds 
outstanding at 31 December 2007. 

Internal organisation

Role of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the ultimate decision-
making, management and governing body of the 
Daetwyler Group. The Board consists of not less 
than five and not more than eleven members. At 
31 December 2007, the Board comprised eight 
Directors. The roles of the Chairman and Chief Ex-
ecutive Officer (CEO) are separate. The Directors 
have no executive functions in the Group, do not 
have any business relationship with the Daetwyler 
Group and are all considered to be independent 
(none of them served on Daetwyler’s Executive 
Board during the three financial years preceding 
the period under review). No Director holds cross-
directorships with other Directors through involve-
ment in other listed companies.

Directors are elected for staggered four-year 
terms. They are eligible for re-election for further 
periods, with no limit on the number of terms they 
may serve. Directors retire at the Annual General 
Meeting following their 70th birthday. Each class 
of shares is entitled to nominate at least one rep-
resentative to the Board. The average age of the 
Directors currently in office is 61 and their average 
tenure is six years.

Main responsibilities and operation of the Board
The Board organises itself. Its main responsibilities 
are defined in Art. 716a of the Swiss Code of Obli-
gations. In order to discharge these responsibilities 
efficiently, the Board has authority under the Rules 
of Organisation and Business Conduct of Daet-
wyler Holding Inc. to appoint Committees from 
among its members to deal with specific matters. 
There are currently two Committees: the Audit 
Committee and the Human Resources Committee.

The Board holds six regular meetings a year, each 
lasting between half a day and one full day. A two-
day annual strategy workshop is held to review 
and develop the strategy. The strategy workshop 
is usually combined with a visit to one of the divi-
sions. Special Board meetings are held when ne
cessary. Agendas for Board meetings are set by the 
Chairman in consultation with the CEO and CFO. 
Any Director may request that an item be placed 
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on the agenda or that a special meeting be held. 
The CFO acts as Secretary to the Board.

Directors receive papers and information at least 
ten days in advance of meetings to allow them to 
prepare for discussion of each item. Depending 
on the nature of the business to be transacted, the 
Chairman may invite members of the Executive 
Board to provide information at Board meetings 
and participate in an advisory capacity. The Board 
operates as a team and strives to reach decisions 
unanimously, wherever possible. If a unanimous 
decision cannot be reached, the minutes of the 
meeting must give the names of who voted and 
how they voted. The Board has a quorum when 
at least a majority of its members is present. Its 
resolutions are passed by a majority of the members 
present. The Chairman is also a voting member and 
has the casting vote in the event of a tie.

During 2007, the Board held seven meetings attend
ed by the CEO and CFO. The other members of the 
Executive Board were present at each meeting for 
the discussion of items relating to them. In 2007, 
no external specialists were called in.

Operation of the Committees
The Committees have written terms of reference 
specifying their responsibilities and authority. The 
Committees generally prepare the groundwork 
for decision-making by the full Board. They meet 
at the call of their chairmen as often as necessary 
to discharge their duties: the Audit Committee at 
least four times a year and the Human Resources 
Committee at least twice a year. Their meetings 
usually last half a day. All Directors, Executive Board 
members and the external auditors may request 
a meeting of the Committees. Depending on the 
nature of the business to be transacted, meetings 

are attended by the CEO, CFO or, if required, by a 
representative of the external auditors or a specialist 
in an advisory capacity. The agendas for Commit-
tee meetings are set by the respective chairmen 
in agreement with the CEO and CFO. Committee 
members receive papers and information in advance 
of meetings to allow them to prepare for discussion 
of each item. At least two members must be present 
to constitute a quorum. The Committees pass their 
resolutions by an absolute majority of the votes 
cast. In the event of a tie, the chairman has the cast-
ing vote. The Committees keep a record of their de-
cisions and recommendations in minutes submitted 
to the Board and report the results of their activities 
at the next following Board meeting.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of at least three 
Directors, each of whom has experience in finance 
and accounting, who are appointed by the Board 
from among its members for a period of one year. 
The Audit Committee appoints its chairman. Mem-
bers of the Audit Committee are: Hans R. Rueegg 
(chairman), Ulrich Graf and Ernst Odermatt. In 2007, 
the Audit Committee held four meetings attended 
by the CEO and CFO. Representatives of the exter-
nal auditors attended all the meetings for the dis-
cussion of selected items.

Main responsibilities and authority of  
the Audit Committee
 	� To ensure comprehensive and effective internal 

control and risk management systems for Daet-
wyler Holding Inc. and the Daetwyler Group. 

 	� To ensure a comprehensive and effective audit 
programme for Daetwyler Holding Inc. and the 
Daetwyler Group.

 	� To comment on the proposed audit plan and 
results of audits.

 	� To receive recommendations from the external 
auditors, discuss the recommendations with the Ex-
ecutive Board and provide a summary for the Board.

 	� To make an annual evaluation of the perform-
ance, remuneration and independence of the 
statutory and Group auditors. 

 	� To review the Executive Board’s recommendation 
to the Board, for approval by the Annual General 
Meeting, for the appointment of the external au-
ditors of Daetwyler Holding Inc.

Corporate Governance
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Human Resources Committee
The Human Resources Committee consists of three 
Directors: the Chairman of the Board and two Dir
ectors to be appointed by the Board from among 
its members. The Chairman of the Board presides 
over the Committee. Members of the Human 
Resources Committee are: Ulrich Graf (chairman), 
Hanspeter Faessler and Werner Inderbitzin. In 2007, 
the Human Resources Committee held five meet-
ings with the CEO and CFO. In 2007, no external 
specialists were called in.

Main responsibilities and authority of the Human 
Resources Committee
 	� To review the performance of and evaluate 

current and potential Executive Board members 
and Group executives.

 	� When necessary, to seek and evaluate candidates 
to serve as new Directors and Executive Board 
members.

 	 �To submit proposals to the Board for the remuner-
ation of Directors and Executive Board members.

 	� To develop policies for salary, bonus and incentive 
schemes.

 	� To periodically review the salary and bonus 
schemes within the Daetwyler Group and the in
centive and profit-sharing schemes for executives 
and employees.

Division of responsibilities between the Board of 
Directors and Executive Board
The authority and responsibilities delegated to the 
Board of Directors and Executive Board are laid 
down in the “Rules of Organisation and Business 
Conduct” as provided in Article 20 of the Articles of 
Association of Daetwyler Holding Inc. These rules 
are updated on a regular basis. They describe the 
non-delegable functions reserved to the Board of 
Directors by law and delegate all other business 
affairs to the Executive Board, presided over by the 
CEO. The policies set out in the “Rules of Organisa
tion and Business Conduct” are detailed for all 
business and functional areas in the following writ-
ten documents: “Management Process”, “General 
Division of Responsibilities between the General 
Meeting - Board of Directors - Executive Board”,  
 “Group Management Philosophy”, “Delegation of 
Group Management Responsibilities” and “Invest-
ment Manual”. The Daetwyler Group operates a 

systematically decentralised management system 
within a clear framework. The Group fosters an 
entrepreneurial culture where decisions are taken 
at the lowest possible level close to the market 
and customers.

As a rule, the Board of Directors approves major 
projects it deems expedient together with the 
budget. For urgent capital expenditure not includ-
ed in the budget, levels of authority are defined 
and a return on investment analysis must be pre-
pared. Capital expenditure exceeding CHF 3 million 
must be approved by the full Board of Directors.

Information and control systems for monitoring 
the Executive Board
The Board has an internal control system in place 
to monitor and control the Executive Board. This 
is based on an institutionalised, annual manage-
ment process cycle, the key elements of which 
are as follows:

 	� Monthly report with a division and Group con-
solidation: budget, actual and forecast figures, 
including variance analyses and a written com-
mentary by the division managers on current 
developments and potential risks. 

 	� Internal interim and annual report.

 	� Annual review and approval of the annual 
budget and three-year medium-term plan.

 	� Annual review and approval of the updated 
Group and division strategies.

 	� Uniform Group-wide management system with 
integrated risk evaluation for strategic projects. 

  	� Special reports on major items of capital expend-
iture, acquisitions and alliances.

 	� Inclusion of Executive Board members at Board 
and Committee meetings.

In addition to these institutionalised information 
and control systems, the Board can use an internal 
audit function, which is being progressively 
expanded. The Chairman of the Board and CEO 
engage in regular dialogue regarding all important 
business. In addition, the CEO and CFO are required 
to inform the Chairman of the Board without delay 
of any important unusual events or developments 
and measures planned.
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Board of Directors

Ulrich Graf (1945, Swiss)
Chairman (term expires in 2008)
Ulrich Graf has served on the Board of Daetwyler 
Holding Inc. since 2004. He was appointed Chair-
man in 2005 and is a member of the Audit and 
Human Resources Committees. Between 1989 and 
2006, he was CEO of the Kaba Group, where he 
had held a number of management positions since 
1976. In addition to his appointment in Daetwyler, 
Ulrich Graf is Chairman of Kaba Holding Ltd., Griesser 
Ltd. and Fr. Sauter Ltd. He is also a Director of Georg 
Fischer Ltd. and Feller Ltd., a member of the Board 
of Trustees of REGA Swiss Air Ambulance and a 
Supervisory Board member of DEKRA e.V. He has 
a degree in electrical engineering from the Swiss 
Federal Institute of Technology.

Hans R. Rueegg (1946, Swiss)
Deputy Chairman (term expires in 2010)
Hans R. Rueegg has served Daetwyler Holding Inc. 
as a Director since 1991, taking office as Deputy 
Chairman and becoming a member of the Audit 
Committee in 2002. He has been CEO of Baumann 
Springs Ltd. since 1983, serving as Chairman and 
CEO since 1993, and is Chairman of Vetropack Hold-
ing AG. Hans R. Rueegg holds a degree in electrical 
engineering from the Swiss Federal Institute of 
Technology and an MBA from the University of 
Florida, Gainesville (USA).

Hanspeter Faessler (1956, Swiss)
Director (term expires in 2008)
Hanspeter Faessler has been a Director of Daet-
wyler Holding Inc. since 2004 and is a member of 
the Human Resources Committee. At the begin-
ning of 2006, he was appointed responsible for 
ABB’s Mediterranean Region and Country Manager 

of ABB Italy. He was previously ABB’s Country Man-
ager in Switzerland, having held various manage-
ment positions within ABB since 1989, both inside 
and outside Switzerland. Hanspeter Faessler earned 
a doctorate specialising in mechatronics / robotics 
(DSc) from the Swiss Federal Institute of Technology 
Zurich and also holds an engineering degree from 
Stanford University (USA).

Werner Inderbitzin (1946, Swiss)
Director (term expires in 2010)
Werner Inderbitzin was appointed to the Board of 
Daetwyler Holding Inc. at the 2002 Annual General 
Meeting and is a member of the Human Resources 
Committee. He is Chairman, CEO and co-owner of 
Garaventa Ltd. and Ropetrans AG. He took over the 
operational management of Garaventa Ltd., a global 
manufacturer of ropeway systems, in 1992, having 
previously spent 18 years with Daetwyler’s Rubber 
Division, ultimately as First Vice President and a 
member of the division management committee. 
Werner Inderbitzin obtained a degree in business 
administration from the University of St. Gallen.

Ernst Lienhard (1946, Swiss)
Director (term expires in 2010),  
Bearer Shareholders’ Representative
Ernst Lienhard was appointed a Director of 
Daetwyler Holding Inc. at the 2006 Annual Gen-
eral Meeting to serve as the Bearer Shareholders’ 
Representative. He was with Credit Suisse for more 
than 30 years, several of which were spent abroad 
in Paris, Peru, New York and the Bahamas. After his 
return and until his retirement in 2004, he was re-
sponsible for Swiss wholesale commercial banking. 
Ernst Lienhard is a Director of publicly listed Huegli 
Holding AG and several family-owned Swiss com-
panies, also serving on the Boards of various Swiss 
subsidiaries of foreign multinationals. He studied 
banking at the University of St. Gallen, where he 
also earned a doctorate in economics. In addition, 
he studied at IMD in Lausanne and Wharton Uni-
versity in Philadelphia. 
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Ernst Odermatt (1948, Swiss)
Director (term expires in 2008)
Ernst Odermatt was appointed to the Board of 
Daetwyler Holding Inc. in 2004 and is a member 
of the Audit Committee. Until the end of 2005, 
he was CEO of the Oerlikon Contraves Group, in 
which capacity he served on the Executive Board 
of Rheinmetall DeTec AG, Duesseldorf, having held 
a number of management positions with Oerlikon 
Contraves since 1978. He is a Director of Metall Zug 
Ltd. and was Chairman of V-Zug Ltd. (until Septem-
ber 2007). Ernst Odermatt is also a member of the 
Advisory Board of CGS Private Equity Partnership. 
He holds a degree in mechanical engineering from 
the Swiss Federal Institute of Technology Zurich 
and a degree in business administration from the 
University of Zurich.

Franz Steinegger (1943, Swiss)
Director (term expires in 2010)
Franz Steinegger has been a Director of Daetwyler 
Holding Inc. since 1994. He was President of the 
Free Democratic Party of Switzerland for 12 years 
until 2001 and a member of the National Council 
from 1980 to 2003. Since 1981, he has practised as 
an independent lawyer and notary in Altdorf. Franz 
Steinegger is currently Chairman of SUVA (the Swiss 
Accident Insurance Fund), Deputy Chairman of 
Siemens Switzerland Ltd. and also a Director of AG 
fuer die Neue Zuercher Zeitung and Poeyry Oyi, Fin-
land. He graduated in law from the University of Zu-
rich and is a member of the bar of the Canton of Uri.

Franz J. Wuerth (1940, Swiss/Belgian)
Director (term expires in 2010)
Franz J. Wuerth has served on the Board of Daetwyler 
Holding Inc. since 2003. From 1988 until reaching 
retirement age in 2002, he was a member of the 
Daetwyler Group’s Executive Board. He headed the 
Technical Components Division from 1993 to 2002, 
having been in charge of the Pharmaceutical Pack-
aging Division based in Belgium from 1975 to 1992. 
In the period from 1970 to 1975, he was a member 
of the Executive Board of a Dutch company acquired 
by Daetwyler in 1969. Franz J. Wuerth started his 
career working for Daetwyler Inc. in various staff 
functions. He gained his educational background 
in commerce and business administration in Swit-
zerland, the UK and the USA. 

Honorary Directors

Roland Zimmerli (1934, Swiss)
Honorary Chairman (since 2005)
During his 35 years of committed service in a 
variety of management positions, Roland Zimmerli 
helped to shape Daetwyler into a Group of inter-
national dimensions. After the IPO, he circumspectly 
transformed Daetwyler from a family-owned 
business into a public company. In appreciation of 
his services to the Daetwyler Group, the Board 
appointed him Honorary Chairman in 2005, follow-
ing his term as Chairman from 1999 to 2005. Before 
joining the Board, Roland Zimmerli served as CEO 
of Daetwyler Holding Inc. from 1991 to 1999. His 
expertise was also much sought after on the Boards 
of renowned Swiss companies. He graduated with 
a degree in business administration from the Uni-
versity of Zurich.

Max Daetwyler (1929, Swiss)
Honorary Director (since 1999)
Max Daetwyler was Chairman of Daetwyler 
Holding Inc. from its inception in 1958 until 1965. 
After handing over the Chairmanship to outside 
Directors, he continued to serve as Deputy Chairman 
and Executive Director until the end of 1999. 
Together with his late brother, Peter Daetwyler, Max 
Daetwyler was instrumental in building Daetwyler 
Holding Inc. into a diversified international corpor
ation and, in 1990, ensured the Group’s long-term 
independence through the shareholders’ agreement 
of Daetwyler Fuehrungs AG. He holds a doctor-
ate in chemistry from the Swiss Federal Institute of 
Technology Zurich and a degree in economics from 
the University of Zurich.
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Executive Board

Paul J. Haelg (1954, Swiss)
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Head of 
Technical Components Division
Paul J. Haelg was appointed CEO of the Daetwyler 
Group from August 2004 and also heads the Tech
nical Components Division. Before joining the Daet-
wyler Group, he served on Forbo’s Executive Board 
as Executive Vice President of Forbo Adhesives. 
From 1986 to 2001, he held a number of manage-
ment positions with Gurit-Essex (Gurit-Heberlein 
Group), ultimately as CEO. In the five years prior 
to that, he worked for Swiss Aluminium Ltd. Paul J. 
Haelg is Chairman of publicly listed Gurit Holding 
Ltd. and Medisize Holding Ltd. He studied chem-
istry at the Swiss Federal Institute of Technology 
Zurich, graduating with a doctorate (DSc).

Silvio A. Magagna (1946, Swiss)
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Silvio A. Magagna has been CFO and a member 
of the Executive Board since 1988. He also acts as 
Secretary to the Board. Between 1983 and 1988, 
he was a member of the Group Management of 
Wild Leitz AG (now Leica) as Senior Vice President 
of Finance, Controlling and Logistics. During the 
previous five years, he broadened his international 
experience working for the Holcim Group as re-
gional controller and IT manager. After completing 
his studies, he spent five years as a management 
consultant for the construction industry. Silvio A. 
Magagna holds a degree in business administration 
from the University of St. Gallen and furthered his 
studies at the University of Pittsburgh and Stanford 
University (USA).

Johannes Mueller (1958, Swiss)
Head of Cables Division
Johannes Mueller has been a member of the Executive 
Board and headed the Cables Division since August 
2004. He was previously CEO of consulting firm Brain-
force AG for three years. Before joining Brainforce in 
2001, he ran a division of Cellpack Ltd. for more than 
four years. From 1987 to 1996, he held various inter-
national management positions with telecommunica
tions group Alcatel. Johannes Mueller has a degree in 
electrical engineering from the Swiss Federal Institute 
of Technology Zurich and completed additional 
studies, including a programme at Insead (France).

Dirk Lambrecht (1960, German)
Head of Rubber Division
Dirk Lambrecht has headed the Rubber Division 
since May 2005 and in that capacity serves on the 
Executive Board. Before joining Daetwyler, he 
managed Phoenix Traffic Technology GmbH, a 
subsidiary of Phoenix AG. Prior to that, from 1987 
to 2003, he held a number of international man-
agement positions with Phoenix AG in Hamburg. 
Dirk Lambrecht earned a degree in mechanical 
engineering, specialising in apparatus engineering, 
from Hamburg University of Applied Sciences and 
completed further studies, including a programme 
at the Management School St. Gallen.

Guido Wallraff (1963, Belgian)
Head of Pharmaceutical Packaging Division
Guido Wallraff came to head the Pharmaceutical 
Packaging Division in July 2007. Prior to that, he 
gained experience in the pharmaceutical pack-
aging market as sales and marketing director of 
Capsugel, a Pfizer subsidiary. Between 1994 and 
2005, Guido Wallraff held a number of international 
management positions with Fisher Scientific, hav-
ing previously worked as a sales engineer for 3M 
and BF Goodrich Chemical. Guido Wallraff studied 
chemistry in Aachen and Wuppertal, graduating as 
a chemical engineer. He completed his qualifica-
tions with additional studies in business adminis
tration, IT and pharmacology.

Management contracts
There are no management contracts delegating 
management responsibilities to individuals or com-
panies outside the Group.

Corporate Governance
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Remuneration, shareholdings  
and loans

Elements and determination of remuneration
The elements of remuneration for Directors and 
Executive Board members are determined annually 
by the Human Resources Committee and approved 
by the full Board. The Directors have a voice at 
these meetings. 

Directors receive remuneration in the form of a 
fixed fee in cash and an award of a fixed number of 
bearer shares of Daetwyler Holding Inc. 

The remuneration of Executive Board members 
consists of a fixed cash salary and an award of a 
fixed number of bearer shares of Daetwyler Hold-
ing Inc. In addition, they are contractually assured 
of a variable bonus, up to a maximum of 100 % of 
their fixed salary, which is based on the following 
factors and against which the share component 
is offset. This bonus is linked to the achievement 
of individual performance and earnings goals 
established annually in advance in the respective 
division and the Group as a whole. 

The share award plan established in 2007 gives 
Directors and Executive Board members an owner-
ship interest in Daetwyler Holding Inc. and a share 
in the long-term performance of the Daetwyler 
Group. The shares awarded vest over a period of 
five years, which still applies even if a member 
leaves the Board of Directors or Executive Board.

The elements of remuneration are consistent with 
common standards for international industrial 
companies. The services of external consultants 
are not used to determine the remuneration nor 
are official benchmarks or salary comparisons used.

More information about remuneration, sharehold-
ings and loans is presented in note 2 to the Com-
pany financial statements of Daetwyler Holding Inc. 
on page 104.

Shareholders’ participation rights

The shareholders’ participation rights comply with 
the provisions of Swiss Corporation Law. The 
Articles of Association contain no quorum require-
ments that differ from those prescribed by law.

Voting restrictions and proxy voting
There are no restrictions on registration or voting. 
Under the Articles of Association of Daetwyler 
Holding Inc., each share carries one vote at gen-
eral meetings regardless of its par value. Persons 
representing shareholders must present a written 
proxy. Legal representatives of shareholders do not 
need a proxy appointment. Shareholders who are 
unable to attend a general meeting may appoint a 
member of a corporate agent of the Company or an 
independent proxy to represent them.

Calling of general meetings and additions  
to the agenda
The procedures for calling general meetings and 
adding items to the agenda are set out in the Articles 
of Association of Daetwyler Holding Inc. in accord-
ance with the Swiss Code of Obligations (Art. 699 f).

Share registration
Every person whose name is entered in the share 
register no later than 14 days prior to a general 
meeting is recognised by the Company as a share-
holder and holder of all rights attached to the 
registered shares.

Change of control and defensive measures
The Articles of Association do not contain any “opt-
ing out” or “opting up” provisions. Daetwyler Hold-
ing Inc. does not have any change of control clauses 
which benefit Directors or Executive Board members.

Statutory and Group auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers AG (formerly 
Schweizerische Treuhandgesellschaft) has audited 
the financial statements of Daetwyler Holding 
Inc. since its inception in 1958. It was first engaged 
to audit the consolidated financial statements in 
1986. There was a change in the lead audit part-
ner in 2007. The statutory and Group auditors are 
appointed at each Annual General Meeting for a 
term of one year. For the year under review, the 
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Daetwyler Group paid PricewaterhouseCoopers 
fees of CHF 0.787 million for services rendered in 
connection with the audit of the individual and 
consolidated financial statements. Some of the 
Group companies are audited by other firms of 
accountants. For the provision of additional busi-
ness and tax services, PricewaterhouseCoopers 
received CHF 0.294 million in fees from the Daetwyler 
Group for the year. 

Representatives of the external auditors attend all 
meetings of the Audit Committee for the discussion 
of certain items. Four meetings were held in 2007. 
At each meeting, the external auditors present a re-
port on the progress of their work. The core element 
of the auditors’ reporting is the annual audit report 
with recommendations to the Audit Committee.

The supervisory body for the external statutory 
and Group auditors is the Board’s Audit Committee, 
which is also responsible for financial reporting. It 
has the support of the internal audit function, which 
is being progressively expanded. The Audit Commit-
tee makes an annual evaluation of the performance, 
remuneration and independence of the statutory 
and Group auditors. This is presented to the full 
Board together with the auditors’ audit report.

Information policy

The Daetwyler Group maintains an open dialogue 
with all stakeholders. In the interests of share-
holders, Daetwyler especially fosters relationships 
with investors, banks and media representatives. 
Communication takes place through the Annual 
Report (including consolidated financial state-
ments prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS), Interim 
Report, Annual General Meeting and at least one 
press and analyst conference every year. Through 
press releases and on its website (www.daetwyler.ch),  
Daetwyler provides up-to-the-minute informa-
tion on all important projects as required by the 
ad hoc publicity rules of the SWX Swiss Exchange. 
The archive of ad hoc press releases can be found 
at www.daetwyler.ch > Media > Press Releases. A 
facility for signing up to receive ad hoc press re-
leases is provided at www.daetwyler.ch > Media > 
Email Alerts. Contact details and important dates 
are given in the General Information section on 
page 117.

Corporate Governance

Our modern cable cutting unit is the backbone of cable harnessing.
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36	 Derivative financial instruments

Forward exchange contracts

At 31 December in CHF millions	 2007	 2006
Positive fair value	 0.3	 0.0
Contractual amounts	 7.9	 3.4
		
Negative fair value	 0.5	 0.6
Contractual amounts	 17.0	 26.9

Forward exchange contracts by currency

At 31 December in CHF millions	 2007	 2006
EUR	 5.8	 13.8
USD	 7.9	 9.6
SGD	 –	 0.3
CZK	 11.2	 6.6
Total forward exchange contracts	 24.9	 30.3

The Group hedges part of its exposure to foreign 
currency risk on trade receivables, trade payables 
and intra-group loans. Forward exchange contracts 
and currency options, which generally have matur­

37	 Contingent liabilities

The Group has a number of risks arising in the ordin­
ary course of business from contingent or probable 
liabilities in connection with litigation and outstand­
ing tax assessments. Provisions have been recog­
nised to the extent that the outcome of such matters 
can be estimated reliably. No provisions have been 
made where the outcome is uncertain or the risk is 
not quantifiable.

The Daetwyler Group has not given any guarantees 
in respect of its business relationships with third par­
ties. Intra-group performance bonds and guarantees 
have been eliminated on consolidation. There are no 
subordination agreements with third parties.
When the Precision Tubes Division was sold at the 
end of 2007, the Group granted usual contractual 

These forward exchange contracts have matur­
ities up to mid-May 2008. Positive fair values are 
recorded as other receivables, prepayments and 

accrued income (note 18), while negative fair values 
are included in other current liabilities, accruals and 
deferred income (note 26).

ities of less than 12 months, are used as hedging 
instruments. Hedge accounting as defined by the 
requirements in IAS 39 is not applied.

guarantees to the purchasers in respect of environ­
mental contamination, etc. This guarantee is limited 
to a maximum of CHF 18.4 million and applies to 
certain cases on a degressive basis for a maximum 
period of 10 years or until statute-barred. At present, 
no claims by the purchaser are known.
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38	� Future lease commitments

39	� Research and development costs

Maturities of future operating lease commitments

In CHF millions	 2007	 2006
Less than one year	 1.3	 0.8
Between 2 and 5 years	 2.4	 1.4
Over 5 years	 0.7	 –
Total future operating lease commitments	 4.4	 2.2

In CHF millions	 2007	 2006
Employee costs	 4.2	 3.4
Depreciation and amortisation	 0.1	 0.1
Other operating expenses	 1.3	 1.3
Total research and development costs	 5.6	 4.8

The operating lease payments recognised as an ex­
pense in the income statement for 2007 amounted 
to CHF 1.6 million (2006: CHF 1.5 million). There are 
no individually significant operating leases. Details 
of finance lease liabilities are presented in notes 26 
and 27.

In addition to the disposal of the Precision Tubes 
Division reported separately in note 5, other dis­
posals and acquisitions of subsidiaries had the fol­
lowing effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities 
in 2007 and 2006.

Acquisitions in 2007
Maagtechnic in the Technical Components Divi­
sion, a unit of Daetwyler Switzerland Inc., acquired 
all the shares of the Revol Group’s four operating 
companies in France and the Czech Republic on 
13 February 2007. The Revol Group’s manufactur­
ing and distribution companies are engaged in 
polymers and fluid products.

Distrelec in the Technical Components Division, a 
unit of Daetwyler Switzerland Inc., acquired all the 
shares in Proditec Ltd., a specialist distributor of 
computer accessories, on 1 January 2007.

In 2007, the acquired businesses employing 247 
people generated net revenue of CHF 72.4 million 
and profit of CHF 1.3 million for the year, which is 
included in the figures for the Technical Compon­
ents Division.

40	� Effect of acquisitions and disposals
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Carrying 
amount

In CHF millions			 
Cash and cash equivalents	 0.4	 –	 0.4
Trade receivables	 18.8	 0.2	 19.0
Inventories	 9.6	 0.8	 10.4
Other receivables	 2.2	 –	 2.2
Property, plant and equipment	 3.2	 4.7	 7.9
Intangible assets	 0.1	 18.9	 19.0
Financial investments	 0.2	 –	 0.2
Current liabilities	 20.2	 0.4	 20.6
Non-current liabilities	 1.6	 8.3	 9.9
Net assets acquired at fair value			   28.6
Goodwill			   28.5
Total purchase consideration, including transaction costs			   57.1
Cash and cash equivalents acquired			   –0.4
Less advance payment made in the prior year			   –10.0
Less deferred consideration			   –0.7
Net cash outflow on acquisition			   46.0

Fair value 
adjustments

Fair value on 
acquisition

The fair value adjustments in respect of intangible 
assets relate to acquired customer lists and trade­
marks. Goodwill is attributable to the profitability of 
the acquired businesses and the synergies expect­
ed to arise from their integration in the Technical 
Components Division. Part of the purchase consid­
eration is contingent on future performance and 
has therefore been estimated.

Disposals in 2007
The Daetwyler Group’s Cables Division disposed 
of its fibre glass manufacturing facility on 1 Janu­
ary 2007 by selling all the shares in Daetwyler Fiber 
Optics SA in Boudry, Switzerland. No gain or loss 
was realised on the sale. The assets and liabilities 
had been classified as a disposal group since 2005, 
see note 17.

The following table shows the fair value of the 
assets and liabilities acquired at the acquisition 
date, including identifiable intangible assets and 
goodwill arising from the transactions:

At the Annual General Meeting on 22 April 2008, 
the Board of Directors of Daetwyler Holding Inc. 
will propose that, in place of a dividend payment, 
the par value of shares be reduced by CHF 4.95 
from the current CHF 5.00 to CHF 0.05 per bearer 
share and by CHF 0.99 from the current CHF 1.00 
to CHF 0.01 per registered share.

On 18 March 2008, the Board of Directors of Daet­
wyler Holding Inc. approved the acquisition of the 
ELFA Group (Sweden). The purchase agreement 
with Industri Kapital, a private equity firm in Stock­

holm, was signed the same day. ELFA is the leading 
catalogue distributor for industrial electronics and 
automation in Scandinavia, the Baltic and Eastern 
Europe. Employing 400 people, the group gener­
ates revenue of some CHF 180 million and EBITDA 
of about CHF 35 million, and will contribute to 
profit from the first year. The purchase price for the 
debt-free ELFA Group is approximately CHF 350 mil­
lion. Completion of the agreement with Industri 
Kapital is planned for the end of April 2008 after the 
customary regulatory conditions have been met. 
Following completion of the agreement, the final 

41	� Events after the balance sheet date
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Pema Holding AG
There were no transactions between the companies 
other than dividend payments to Pema Holding AG 
and administrative costs of CHF 21,520 charged in 
2007 (2006: CHF 26,000) for administration and ac­
counting services provided by Alvest AG. At the end 
of 2007 and 2006, there were no mutual receivables 
and payables.

Pension schemes
Alvest AG charged administrative costs of CHF 0.2 mil­
lion (2006: CHF 0.2 million) to the pension schemes.

In 2007, the pension fund of Daetwyler Holding Inc. 
sold a plot of land to Daetwyler Switzerland Inc. at 
market value of CHF 4.0 million. This land is part of 
a planned property development and was sold to a 
third party in 2008.

Welfare fund of Daetwyler Holding Inc.
During the reporting year, Daetwyler Switzerland Inc. 
repurchased the staff facilities building at Gotthard­
strasse 31 in Altdorf from the welfare fund of Daet­
wyler Holding Inc. for CHF 4.8 million. The price is 
based on asset value and not on market value. The 
valuation was determined by an external independ­
ent property valuer. This one-off payment served to 
discharge the existing long-term obligation to the 
welfare fund. See note 19 for details of the valuation 
of the building.

Remuneration of Directors and Executive Board 
members
The information required by Art. 663bbis and Art. 
663c (transparency requirements) of the Swiss Code 
of Obligations is disclosed in note 2 to the Company 
financial statements of Daetwyler Holding Inc. Some 
of the figures given below differ from the amounts 

disclosed in the Company financial statements of 
Daetwyler Holding Inc. because the fair value meas­
urement of the share award plan (see note 32) at the 
date of award and the allocation of the expenses 
charged to the income statement over the term of 
the fixed three-year agreement differ from the local 
statutory valuation applicable to the Company 
financial statements of Daetwyler Holding Inc.

The remuneration of Directors of Daetwyler Hold­
ing Inc. consists of a fixed fee in the form of cash and 
shares. Their remuneration in the year under review 
totalled CHF 2.417 million (2006: CHF 0.609 million), 
of which shares accounted for CHF 1.847 million 
(2006: none).

The remuneration paid to Executive Board members 
consists of a fixed salary, a share award and a vari­
able bonus up to a maximum of 100 % of base salary. 
Former Executive Board members have no form of 
remuneration other than benefits under the regular 
and supplementary pension schemes. No legally 
required termination benefits were paid in 2007 
(2006: CHF 2.2 million). The total remuneration of Ex­
ecutive Board members for the year was CHF 7.918 
million (2006: CHF 4.339 million). This amount in­
cludes pension fund contributions of CHF 0.612 mil­
lion (2006: CHF 0.609 million). Of the total remu­
neration, CHF 3.263 million (2006: CHF 3.112 mil­
lion) was paid as fixed salary, CHF 1.382 million as 
equity-settled payments in the form of shares valued 
in accordance with IFRS 2 and CHF 3.273 million 
(2006: CHF 1.227 million) as cash bonuses.

42	� Related party transactions

purchase price will be determined and allocated. 
With the strategic acquisition of the ELFA Group, 
Daetwyler is systematically expanding the Distrelec 
Group (Technical Components Division).

The Board of Directors and Executive Board are 
not aware of any significant events occurring up to 

the date of approval of the consolidated financial 
statements on 18 March 2008 that would cause an 
adjustment of the carrying amounts of the Group’s 
assets and liabilities.
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Switzerland	 Alvest AG	 Altdorf	 CHF	 15.000	 100	 C*					     

	 Daetwyler Inc.	 Altdorf	 CHF	 0.100	 100	 C*					     

	 Daetwyler Electronics Ltd.	 Altdorf	 CHF	 0.100	 100	 C*					     

	 Daetwyler Pharma Pack Holding AG	 Altdorf	 CHF	 39.000	 100	 C*			   

	 Daetwyler Switzerland Inc.	 Altdorf	 CHF	 32.000 	 100	 C*	 	 		  	 

	 Daetwyler Teco Holding AG	 Altdorf	 CHF	 9.900 	 100	 C*				    	
	 Distrelec Inc.	 Altdorf	 CHF	 0.050 	 100	 C*					     

	 Gummi Maag AG	 Duebendorf	 CHF	 0.050 	 100	 C					     

	 Ilgenhof AG	 St. Gallen	 CHF	 0.600 	 100	 C*					     

	 Kaved AG	 Altdorf	 CHF	 1.500 	 100	 C*	 				  
	 Maag Technic Inc.	 Altdorf	 CHF	 0.090 	 100	 C*					     

	 Mader Technic AG	 Duebendorf	 CHF	 0.100 	 100	 C					     

	 MTD-Immobilien AG	 Duebendorf	 CHF	 2.000 	 100	 C				    	
	 Pohl Immobilien AG	 Altdorf	 CHF	 1.600 	 100	 C			   		
	 Proditec Ltd.	 Naenikon	 CHF	 0.300 	 100	 C*				    	
	 Wachendorf AG	 Duebendorf	 CHF	 0.100 	 100	 C					     

Subsidiaries and Investments
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following companies at 31 December 2007:

Manufacturing and sales
	 Distribution
	 Services / finance / property

C	=	Consolidated at 31 December
F	 =	�Recorded as other financial investments at fair value or cost (less any impairment)
*	 =	Held directly by Daetwyler Holding Inc
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Austria	 Distrelec Gesellschaft mbH	 Vienna	 EUR	 0.145 	 100	 C				    	
Belgium	 Helvoet Pharma NV	 Alken	 EUR	 2.603 	 100	 C			   		
	 Helvoet Pharma Belgium NV	 Alken	 EUR	 15.778 	 100	 C			   		
	 Pharma Packaging Int'l. Services NV	 Alken	 EUR	 107.330 	 100	 C			   		
China	 Daetwyler (Suzhou) Cabling Syst.Co.Ltd.	 Suzhou	 USD	 1.700 	 100	 C	 		
	 Daetwyler Cables+Systems (Shanghai) 
	 Co.Ltd.	 Shanghai	 USD	 10.000 	 100	 C	 			 
Czech Republic	Daetwyler Rubber (CZ) sro	 Novy Bydzov	 CZK	 20.000 	 100	 C		  			 
	 Maagtechnic sro	 Nove Mesto Metuji	CZK	 2.000 	 100	 C	 		  	
France	 Daetwyler Rubber France SAS	 Boos	 EUR	 0.873 	 100	 C		  			 
	 Maagtechnic SAS	 Vaulx-en-Velin	 EUR	 12.050 	 100	 C				    	
	 Soded SAS	 Saint-Marcellin	 EUR	 0.400 	 100	 C				    	
	 Revol Sonier SAS	 Vaulx-en-Velin	 EUR	 0.780 	 100	 C				    	
	 Buttin SAS	 Annecy	 EUR	 0.250 	 100	 C				    	
Germany	 Daetwyler Rubber Deutschland GmbH	 Springe	 EUR	 0.256 	 100	 C		  			 
	 Daetwyler Kabel+Systeme GmbH	 Neufahrn	 EUR	 1.600 	 100	 C	 				  
	 Daetwyler Teco Holding (DE) GmbH	 Goeppingen	 EUR	 3.100 	 100	 C				    	
	 Helvoet Pharma Deutschland GmbH	 Karlsbad	 EUR	 2.600 	 100	 C			 
	 Maag Technic GmbH	 Goeppingen	 EUR	 2.600 	 100	 C				    	
	 Schuricht Distrelec GmbH	 Bremen	 EUR	 0.800 	 100	 C				    	
	 Wachendorf GmbH	 Loerrach	 EUR	 0.030 	 100	 C					     

Italy	 CIF srl	 Veggiano	 EUR	 0.014 	 8	 F			   		
	 Distrelec Italia srl	 Milan	 EUR	 1.275 	 100	 C				    	
	 Helvoet Pharma Italia srl	 Pregnana	 EUR	 2.000 	 100	 C			   		
Luxembourg	 Helvoet Pharma International SA	 Luxembourg	 EUR	 21.071 	 100	 C			   		
Netherlands	 Maro BV	 Roosendaal	 EUR	 0.005 	 100	 C			   		
Singapore	 Daetwyler (Thelma) Cables+Systems Pte Ltd	 Singapore	 SGD	 0.300 	 100	 C	 

UK	 Daetwyler (UK) Ltd	 Swindon	 GBP	 0.500 	 100	 C	 		
Ukraine	 CJSC Daetwyler Rubber Ukraine	 Malyn	 UAH	 0.438 	 100	 C		  

USA	 Daetwyler Rubber & Plastics Inc.	 Marion, SC	 USD	 0.500 	 100	 C		  			 
	 Helvoet Pharma Inc.	 Pennsauken, NJ	 USD	 9.130 	 100	 C			   		
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Report of the Group Auditors

To the general meeting of Daetwyler Holding Inc., Altdorf

As auditors of the group, we have audited the consolidated financial statements (income statement, 

balance sheet, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity and notes; pages 44–99) of 

Daetwyler Holding Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2007.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors. Our responsi­

bility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We con­

firm that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards and with the International 

Standards on Auditing, which require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable as­

surance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. We 

have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 

financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant estimates made 

and the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a rea­

sonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Zurich, March 18, 2008

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

	
Patrick Balkanyi	 Josef Stadelmann

Auditor in charge
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Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December in CHF	 *		  2007	 2006

Investment income		  33 000 882	 31 000 706
			 
  Gain on disposal of investment	 1	 +179 397 826	 0
  Finance income	 1	 +12 030 016	 +14 935 536
  Finance costs	 1	 –342 025	 –9 866
Net finance income		  191 085 817	 14 925 670

Employee costs	 2	 –1 400 790	 –643 274
Administrative expenses	 3	 –58 296	 –51 186
Profit before tax		  222 627 613	 45 231 916

Income tax expense		  –821 910	 –471 034
Profit for the year		  221 805 703	 44 760 882

*	 Notes 1 to 3, see pages 104  to 106.
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Balance Sheet

Assets at 31 December in CHF	 *		  2007	 2006
			 
Investments	 4		 190 592 966	 208 544 766
Receivables 	 5		  419 211 519	 302 210 290
Non-current assets			  609 804 485	 510 755 056

Other receivables			   90 753 098	 7 788
Current assets  			   90 753 098	 7 788
			 
Total assets			  700 557 583	 510 762 844

 
 
Equity and liabilities at 31 December in CHF			 

			 
Share capital	 6		  85 000 000	 90 000 000
Statutory reserves	 7		  95 234 084	 100 763 318
  General reserve			   87 000 000	 87 000 000
  Reserve for treasury shares  	 8		  8 234 084	 13 763 318
Special reserve	 9		 297 029 234	 273 621 921
Retained earnings			   222 137 435	 45 159 811
Equity			  699 400 753	 509 545 050

Other liabilities	 10		  1 156 830	 1 217 794
Liabilities			   1 156 830		  1 217 794
			 
Total equity and liabilities			  700 557 583	 510 762 844

*	 Notes 4 to 10, see pages 106 to 108.
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1	 Net finance income 
Amounts owed by Group companies bear interest 
in accordance with Group policies. In 2007, the in­
vestment in RoRo Holding AG, Rothrist, was sold. 
This disposal resulted in a gain of CHF 179 397 826.

Notes to the Financial Statements

2	 Employee costs
Employee costs include all expenses of the Board of 
Directors. The disclosures required by the new Trans­
parency Act in respect of remuneration, loans / cred­
its and interests granted to current and former key 
management personnel (Directors and Executive 
Board members) and persons connected with key 
management personnel are presented below:

Daetwyler Holding Inc.

Remuneration in 2007

 

 
In CHF

Directors
Graf Ulrich *	 143 000	 22	 176 000	 319 000	 0	 19 300	 19 300	 338 300 
Chairman
Rueegg Hans R.	 63 000	 17	 136 000	 199 000	 0	 12 040	 12 040	 211 040 
Deputy Chairman
Faessler Hanspeter	 43 000	 11	 88 000	 131 000	 0	 7 926	 7 926	 138 926 
Director
Inderbitzin Werner	 43 000	 11	 88 000	 131 000	 0	 7 926	 7 926	 138 926 
Director
Lienhard Ernst	 76 000	 11	 88 000	 164 000	 0	 9 922	 9 922	 173 922 
Director
Odermatt Ernst	 43 000	 11	 88 000	 131 000	 0	 7 926	 7 926	 138 926 
Director
Steinegger Franz	 43 000	 11	 88 000	 131 000	 0	 7 926	 7 926	 138 926 
Director
Wuerth Franz Josef	 43 000	 11	 88 000	 131 000	 0	 0	 0	 131 000 
Director

Total for Directors	 497 000	 105	 840 000	 1 337 000	 0	 72 966	 72 966	 1 409 966

Executive Board  
members
Haelg Paul J. *	 650 000	 50	 400 000	 1 050 000	 1 125 000	 303 411	 1 428 411	 2 478 411 
CEO

Total for Executive  
Board members	 2 222 978	 94	 752 000	 2 974 978	 3 272 500	 1 040 654	 4 313 154	 7 288 132

*	 Highest remuneration

Cash
payment

Number
of shares

Fair value 
of shares

Total 
fixed

component

Bonuses 
and

incentives

Pension and 
other benefit 

expense

Total 
variable

 component

Total
remuneration

for 2007 

Base remuneration Variable remuneration
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Explanatory notes:
1. Directors and Executive Board members receive 
a base remuneration in the form of a cash payment 
and shares. The share award for 2007 was determined 
by the HR Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors. The shares awarded on 1 June 2007 at the 
then market value of CHF 8 000.00 vest over a period 
of 5 years. After the end of this period, the shares are 
at the free disposal of the beneficiary or his legal suc­
cessor regardless of death, disability or termination. 
2. The amounts shown in the table under variable 
remuneration represent the expense actually rec­
ognised for bonuses granted for 2007, which will be 
paid in March 2008.
3. The heading “pension and other benefit expense” 
includes all costs of pension plans, other employee 
benefits and benefits in kind.
4. One Director (shareholders’ representative under 
Art. 709 of the Swiss Code of Obligations) receives 
a higher remuneration for his services to bearer 
shareholders.

Daetwyler Holding Inc.

No payments were made to former Directors or 
Executive Board members. Nor was any non-arm’s 
length remuneration paid to persons connected 
with current or former Directors or Executive Board 
members.

Loans and credits
No loans and / or credits were granted to individ­
ual current or former Directors or Executive Board 
members (including persons connected with 
them). Nor were any non-arm’s length loans and /  
or credits granted to current or former members of 
the Boards or persons connected with them.

Interests
At 31 December 2007, individual Directors and Execu­
tive Board members including persons connected 
with them held the following number of interests in 
the Company: 

Interests in 2007
 
 
 
In CHF

Directors
Graf Ulrich	 Chairman	 3 450	 0.010455	 2 200
Rueegg Hans R.	 Deputy Chairman	 2 200	 0.006667	 1 700
Faessler Hanspeter	 Director	 1 100	 0.003333	 1 100
Inderbitzin Werner	 Director	 1 100	 0.003333	 1 100
Lienhard Ernst	 Director	 1 100	 0.003333	 1 100
Odermatt Ernst	 Director	 1 500	 0.004545	 1 100
Steinegger Franz	 Director	 1 200	 0.003636	 1 100
Wuerth Franz Josef	 Director	 1 100	 0.003333	 1 100

Executive Board members
Haelg Paul J.	 CEO	 7 000	 0.021212	 5 000
Magagna Silvio A.	 CFO	 11 700	 0.035455	 1 700
Mueller Johannes	 Division Head	 1 000	 0.003030	 1 000
Lambrecht Dirk	 Division Head	 1 300	 0.003939	 900
Trauffer René	 Division Head	 800	 0.002424	 800
Wallraff Guido	 Division Head	 0	 0.000000	 0

Class of share: bearer share of CHF 5 each
Percentage voting rights: 0.00000303 per bearer share

Number
of shares

2007

Percentage
voting rights

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Of which vesting over 5 years
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3	 Administrative expenses
This item comprises general business expenses of 
Daetwyler Holding Inc.

4	 Investments
At 31 December 2007, Daetwyler Holding Inc. direct­
ly held investments in the following companies after 
the disposal of the Precision Tubes Division:

Company	 Company		  Share 
			   activity		  capital
Switzerland			   in CHF
Distrelec Inc., Altdorf	 Finance	 50 000
Alvest AG, Altdorf	 Finance	 15 000 000
Maag Technic Inc., Altdorf	 Finance	 90 000
Daetwyler 	 Manufacturing	 32 000 000 
Switzerland Inc., Altdorf
Daetwyler Pharma Pack 	 Investments	 39 000 000 
Holding AG, Altdorf		
Daetwyler Teco	 Investments	 9 900 000 
Holding AG, Altdorf
Daetwyler 	 Finance	 100 000 
Electronics Ltd., Altdorf
Ilgenhof AG, St. Gallen	 Property	 600 000
Kaved AG, Altdorf	 Manufacturing	 1 500 000
Daetwyler Inc., Altdorf 	 Finance	 100 000
All these investments are wholly owned by 
Daetwyler Holding Inc. 
 
The Precision Tubes Division under the umbrella of 
RoRo Holding AG, Rothrist, was sold in 2007. The gain 
on this disposal is included in net finance income. 
The sale was completed on 28 December 2007.

During 2006, Daetwyler Holding Inc., Altdorf, first 
acquired the investments in Distrelec Inc., Uster, and 
Maag Technic AG, Duebendorf, from its subsidiary 
Daetwyler Teco Holding AG, Altdorf, at book value. 
Then in a second step, these companies were merged 
by absorption with Daetwyler Inc., Altdorf, which was 
renamed Daetwyler Switzerland Inc., Altdorf.

Event after the balance sheet date
At its meeting on 5 December 2007, the Board of 
Directors adopted a resolution to merge Kaved AG 
domiciled in Altdorf UR with Daetwyler Cables, a 
unit of Daetwyler Switzerland Inc., Altdorf, during 
the first half of 2008 with retrospective effect from 
1 January 2008. 

5	 Receivables
Receivables comprise long-term loans denominated 
in Swiss francs to Group companies. Loans granted 
to Alvest AG, the Daetwyler Group’s financial and 
management company, account for a total of 
CHF 281 051 789 (2006: CHF 150 225 295). The year-
on-year change is largely the result of dividend and 
interest payments from Group companies, dividend 
payments to shareholders and the cash inflow from 
the sale of the Precision Tubes Division.

6	 Share capital
 
In CHF	 2007	 2006
22 000 000 registered 
shares of CHF 1 each 	 22 000 000	 22 000 000
12 600 000 bearer 		   
shares of CHF 5 each	 63 000 000	 68 000 000
Share capital	 85 000 000	 90 000 000
 
Per share data	 31.12.2007	 31.12.2006
Registered shares  
(of CHF 1 each)		
Number issued	 22 000 000	 220 000
Number ranking  
for dividend	 22 000 000	 220 000
		
Bearer shares  
(of CHF 5 each)		
Number issued	 12 600 000	 136 000
Number ranking 		   
for dividend	 11 000 000	 110 000
		
Total par value of 		   
shares ranking for  
dividend (CHF)	 77 000 000	 77 000 000
		
Authorised share  
capital	 none	 none
Authorised but  
unissued share capital	 none	 none
Voting restrictions	 none	 none
Opting-out and  
opting-up provisions	 none	 none
 
The Annual General Meeting held on 24 April 2007 
approved the resolution proposed by the Board 
to reduce the share capital by CHF 5 000 000 from 
CHF 90 000 000 to CHF 85 000 000 by cancelling 
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10 000 unissued shares of CHF 500 each and to carry 
out a 100-for-1 share split. The share capital is now 
divided into 22 000 000 registered shares of CHF 1 
each and 12 600 000 bearer shares of CHF 5 each. 

The bearer shares of Daetwyler Holding Inc. are listed 
on the Swiss Stock Exchange. With the exception of 
Company bearer shares held in treasury, each regis­
tered or bearer share entitles the holder to one vote 
at general meetings, regardless of its par value. 

All 22 000 000 registered shares and 4 400 000 of 
the total of 12 600 000 bearer shares are owned 
by Pema Holding AG, Altdorf, which consequently 
holds 51.76 % of the share capital and 80.00 % of the 
voting rights.

The Board is not aware of any other shareholders, 
or groups of shareholders subject to voting agree­
ments, who hold more than 3.00 % of the total vot­
ing rights.

Event after the balance sheet date
At the Annual General Meeting on 22 April 2008, 
the Board of Directors will propose that, in place 
of a dividend payment, the par value of shares be 
reduced by CHF 4.95 from the current CHF 5.00 to 
CHF 0.05 per bearer share and by CHF 0.99 from the 
current CHF 1.00 to CHF 0.01 per registered share.

Daetwyler Holding Inc.

7	 Statutory reserves

In CHF	 2007	 2006
Transfer from profit	 4 000 000	 4 000 000
Share premium	 83 000 000	 83 000 000
General reserve	 87 000 000	 87 000 000
Reserve for treasury  
shares: unissued shares 	 8 000 000	 13 000 000
Reserve for treasury  
shares: other	 234 084	 763 318
Reserve for treasury  
shares (according to  
Art. 659a par. 2 CO)	 8 234 084	 13 763 318
Total	 95 234 084	 100 763 318
 
Art. 659a par. 2 and Art. 671a of the Swiss Code of Ob­
ligations (CO) require the Company to recognise the 
cost of acquiring its own shares as a separate reserve. 

8	 Treasury shares
a)	 Unissued shares
26 000 bearer shares of CHF 500 each were created 
by a resolution passed by the General Meeting on 
18 November 1989, disapplying the pre-emption 
rights of shareholders and participation certificate 
holders, to provide for the exercise of options, war­
rants or conversion rights and for other purposes 
in the Company’s interest (market placements, con­
sideration for acquisitions etc.). These shares are 
not entitled to vote and do not rank for dividend 
until they are used.

Following the reduction in share capital and share 
split, 1 600 000 unissued bearer shares were still 
held at 31 December 2007 and are recorded in the 
balance sheet of Alvest AG at par value of CHF 5 
each, making a total of CHF 8 000 000. These bearer 
shares created before the new Swiss Corporation 
Law was enacted on 4 October 1991 now represent 
9.411 % of the total share capital and are thus within 
the 10 % limit which Art. 659 par. 1 of the Swiss 
Code of Obligations imposes on holdings of the 
Company’s own bearer shares. 
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b)	 Other treasury shares
In addition to 320 Company bearer shares with a 
value of CHF 777 700 that were already held on 
31 December 2000, another 1 680 own bearer 
shares valued at CHF 4 311 091 were repurchased 
in the open market in 2001. In accordance with 
Art. 659a par. 2 of the Swiss Code of Obligations, 
the Company recognised the acquisition cost of 
CHF 5 088 791 as a separate reserve for treasury 
shares. The purpose of these treasury shares was 
to meet the requirements for shares under the ex­
ecutive share option plan established on 9 January 
2001. Each of the options entitled its holder to pur­
chase one bearer share of Daetwyler Holding Inc. 
with a par value of CHF 500 at an exercise price of 
CHF 2 500. In 2004, 80 options were exercised so the 
Board decreased the above reserve by CHF 203 552 
to CHF 4 885 239 to reflect the 80 shares issued, as 
prescribed by Art. 671a of the Swiss Code of Obliga­
tions. On the exercise of 1 600 options in 2005, the 
Board then reduced this reserve by CHF 4 071 033 
to CHF 814 206 to account for the 1 600 shares 
issued. Another 20 options were exercised in 2006. 
The Board therefore decreased the reserve by an 
amount of CHF 50 888 to CHF 763 318. The 300 un­
exercised options lapsed without compensation up­
on expiry of the exercise period on 9 January 2006. 

Some of the 300 bearer shares (a total of 219) remain­
ing after the above transactions were required for 
the new employee share award plan established for 
Directors and Executive Board members before the 
share split in 2007. The rest of these shares are held 
by the Daetwyler Group’s financial and management 
company, Alvest AG in Altdorf, as treasury shares at 
market value with all rights and obligations attached. 

Following the share split, the Company’s holdings 
of its own shares therefore consist of 1 600 000 
unissued shares and 8 100 other shares, which rep­
resent a nominal amount of CHF 8 040 500 or 
9.459 % of the total share capital.

9	 Special reserve
The special reserve is an unrestricted reserve avail­
able for distribution by the general meeting. It was 
increased by CHF 17 878 079 to CHF 291 500 000 by 
a resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting 
held on 24 April 2007. 

Under Art. 659a par. 2 and Art. 671a of the Swiss 
Code of Obligations, the Company is required to 
recognise the cost of acquiring its own shares as a 
separate reserve. The Board adjusts that reserve by 
transfers from and to the special reserve. In 2007, an 
amount of CHF 529 234 was transferred to the special 
reserve. In addition, the CHF 5 000 000 becoming 
available when the share capital was reduced from 
CHF 90 000 000 to CHF 85 000 000 was transferred 
from the reserve for treasury shares: “unissued shares” 
to the special reserve. As a result, the special reserve 
amounted to CHF 297 029 234 at 31 December 2007.

10	 Other liabilities

In CHF	 2007	 2006
Accruals and  
deferred income	 1 135 477	 1 198 184
Uncashed dividend  
coupons	 21 353	 19 610
Total	 1 156 830	 1 217 794

Accruals and deferred income comprise accrued tax 
and audit expense.

11	 Bonds, guarantees and pledges in favour of 
third parties
Borrowing facilities of CHF 91.9 million (2006: 
CHF 98.0 million) backed by joint and several 
guarantees were extended to various Group 
companies, of which CHF 1.4 million (2006: 
CHF 16.5 million) was drawn. 

When the Precision Tubes Division was sold at the 
end of 2007, the Group granted the usual contractual 
guarantees to the purchaser in respect of environ­
mental contamination, etc. This guarantee is limited 
to a maximum of CHF 18 400 000 and applies to cer­
tain cases for a maximum period of 10 years or until 
statute-barred. At present, no claims by the pur­
chaser are known. 

Daetwyler Holding Inc.
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Daetwyler Holding Inc.

Proposed Appropriation of Retained Earnings

In CHF			   2007			   2006

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting  
that retained earnings consisting of
Profit for the year			  221 805 703		  44 760 882
Retained earnings brought forward			   331 732		  398 929
Retained earnings			  222 137 435		  45 159 811
				  
be appropriated as follows:
Transfer to special reserve			   0		  17 878 079
Payment of a 0 % dividend (2006: 35 %) on share capital of  
CHF 77 000 000 (2006: CHF 77 000 000) eligible for dividend (1) 			   0		  26 950 000
		
Balance to be carried forward			  222 137 435		  331 732
Total			  222 137 435		  45 159 811
 
For information:
At the Annual General Meeting on 22 April 2008, the Board will propose that, in place of a dividend, the 
par value of shares be reduced by CHF 4.95 from the current CHF 5.00 to CHF 0.05 per bearer share and by 
CHF 0.99 from the current CHF 1.00 to CHF 0.01 per registered share. This represents an absolute par value 
reduction of CHF 84 150 000.00. 

(1)	�  Following the reduction in share capital and share split, 1 600 000 unissued bearer shares reserved to provide 
for the exercise of options, warrants or conversion rights and for other purposes in the Company’s interest at 
the Board’s discretion pursuant to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting on 18 November 1989 do not 
rank for dividend.
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Daetwyler Holding Inc.

Report of the Statutory Auditors

To the general meeting of Daetwyler Holding Inc., Altdorf

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the financial statements (income 

statement, balance sheet and notes; pages 102 – 109) of Daetwyler Holding Inc. for the year ended 

December 31, 2007.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the 

legal requirements concerning professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards, which require that an audit 

be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

are free from material misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the 

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting prin­

ciples used, significant estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accounting records and financial statements and the proposed appropriation of 

available earnings comply with Swiss law and the company‘s articles of incorporation.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Zurich, March 18, 2008

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

	
Patrick Balkanyi	 Nicole Grau

Auditor in charge
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Value Added Statement (on operating profit)

In CHF thousands		  2007		  %		  2006		  %

Origin of value added
Total revenue (1)		 1 513 399	  	 100.0 		 1 299 960	  	 100.0
Bought-in materials and services (2)		  –936 675	  	 –61.9 		  –803 941	  	 –61.8 
Gross value added		   576 724		   38.1 		   496 019		   38.2 
Depreciation and amortisation		  –64 201	  	 –4.2 		  –67 535	  	 –5.2 
Total net value added		  512 523	  	 33.9 		  428 484	  	 33.0 

Distribution of net value added
Employees	 =	 wages, salary and benefits		   364 741	  	 71.1 		   331 522		   77.4 
Lenders	 =	 interest paid		  12 331		   2.4 		   15 079	  	 3.5 
Shareholders	 =	 dividends		  26 986		   5.3 		   13 860	  	 3.2 
Government	 =	 taxes		  27 490	  	 5.4 		   5 368		   1.3 
Retained in business	 =	 profit - dividends		  80 975	  	 15.8 		   62 655	  	 14.6 
Total net value added		  512 523	  	 100.0 		   428 484	  	 100.0 

Net value added per employee		  120				    97

(1)	 �Total revenue: invoiced sales plus incidental revenue, neutral income, other income less revenue deductions.
(2)	 Bought-in materials and services: raw materials, consumables, energy and services.

In CHF thousands				    2007		  %		  2006		  %

Profit for the year			   219 494	  	 77.4 		   76 515	  	 53.1 
+ Depreciation and amortisation		   64 201	  	 22.6 		   67 535		   46.9 

Cash flow			   283 695	  	 100.0 		   144 050	  	 100.0 

–	 Net capital expenditure (1)		  –78 914		  –27.8 		  –73 673	  	 –51.1 
+ / – 	Change:	 Intangible assets		  –56 785	  	 –20.0 		  –4 888	  	 –3.4 
		  Other non-current assets		   6 962		   2.5 		  –14 481		  –10.1 
		  Current assets		   2 940	  	 1.0 		  –27 108	  	 –18.8 

Free cash flow after dividend		   157 898	  	 55.7 		   23 900		   16.6  

(1)	 Purchases, disposals, + / - exchange differences on property, plant and equipment.	

Free Cash Flow (based on profit for the year)	
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Five Year Summary

Daetwyler Group (amounts in CHF millions)			   2007		  2006		  2005		  2004		  2003
Gross revenue			   1 443.8 	  	1 226.8 	  	1 103.9 		  1 063.0 		  1 003.9 
Year-on-year change (%)			    17.7 	  	 11.1 	  	 3.8 		   5.9 	  	 –3.2 
Net revenue			   1 429.4 		  1 214.8 	  	1 091.8 	  	1 049.1 		    991.0 
Year-on-year change (%)			    17.7 		   11.3 	  	 4.1 	  	 5.9 		   –3.4 
EBITDA			     201.1 	  	  157.5 	   	 141.4 	  	  106.0 	  	 97.9 
Depreciation and amortisation			     64.2 		    67.6 	   	 70.5 		    63.2 		    57.1 
Goodwill amortisation			     0.0 	  	  0.0 	   	 7.6 	  	  2.9 	  	  7.0 
As % of net revenue			    4.5 		   5.6 		   7.2 	  	 6.3 	  	 6.5 
Year-on-year change (%)			    –5.0 	  	 –13.4 	  	 18.2 	  	 3.1 		   2.2 
Operating profit (EBIT)			     136.9 	  	  90.0 	   	 64.7 		    39.9 		    33.8 
As % of net revenue			    9.6 	  	 7.4 	  	 5.9 	  	 3.8 	  	 3.4 
Profit for the year			     219.5 	  	  76.5 	   	 40.4 	  	  24.2 	  	  22.1 
As % of net revenue			    15.4 	  	 6.3 	  	 3.7 	  	 2.3 	  	 2.2 
As % of equity			    23.5 	  	 10.4 	  	 6.1 		   3.8 		   3.6 
Year-on-year change (%)			    186.9 	  	 89.4 	  	 66.9 	  	 9.5 	  	 230.8 
Cash flow			     283.7 	  	  144.1 	  	  118.5 	   	 90.3 	   	 86.2 
As % of net revenue			    19.8 	  	 11.9 	  	 10.9	  	  8.6 		   8.7 
Year-on-year change (%)			    96.9 		   21.6 	  	 31.2 	  	 4.8 		   –1.6 
Free cash flow			     157.9 		    23.9 	   	 38.6 		  –6.5 	  	  39.3 
Non–current assets			     449.5 	   	 458.9 	   	 437.4 	   	 462.1 	  	  439.6 
Year-on-year change (%)			    –2.0 		   4.9 	  	 –5.3 		   5.1 	  	 –6.0 
Current assets			     867.2 	   	 633.5 	   	 576.0 	  	  533.2 	  	  575.9 
Year-on-year change (%)			    36.9 		   10.0	  	  8.0 	  	 –7.4 		   6.1 
Total assets			   1 316.7 		  1 092.5 	  	1 013.4 	  	  995.3 	  	1 017.7 
Equity			     933.0 	  	  736.9 	   	 659.9 	   	 633.8 		    618.8 
Year-on-year change (%)			    26.6 	  	 11.7 	  	 4.1 		   2.4 		   3.7 
As % of total capital			    70.9 	  	 67.5 		   65.1 	  	 63.7 	  	 60.8 
Minority interests			    –   		  – 		  – 		  – 		  – 
Total liabilities			     383.7 	   	 355.6 	   	 353.5 	   	 361.5 	  	  398.9 
Year-on-year change (%)			    7.9 	  	 0.6 	  	 –2.2 		   –9.4 	  	 –3.6 
Current liabilities			     322.3 	   	 277.2 	  	  253.1	  	  264.7 	   	 312.4 
Non-current liabilities			     61.4 	  	  78.4 	   	 100.4 	   	 96.8 	  	  86.5 
Capital expenditure on property,  
plant and equipment			   77.6 	   	 73.5 	   	 61.2 	   	 54.2 	  	  42.5 
Year-on-year change (%)			    5.6 	  	 20.1 	  	 12.9 		   27.5 		   –35.4 
Employee costs			     364.7 	   	 331.5 	   	 314.6 	  	  313.4 	   	 305.0 
Year-on-year change (%)			    10.0 		   5.4 	  	 0.4 		   2.8 		   –1.8 
Number of employees			    4 340 	  	 4 510 	  	 4 626 		   4 480 		   4 301 
Year-on-year change (%)			   –3.8 		   –2.5 	  	 3.3 		   4.2	  	  –0.8 

 
Daetwyler Holding Inc. (amounts in CHF millions)		  2007		  2006		  2005		  2004		  2003

Finance and investment income			    224.1 	  	  45.9 	  	  45.3 	  	  42.7 	  	  39.0 
Profit for the year			   221.8 	   	 44.8 	   	 43.3 	   	 40.8 	   	 27.2 
Equity			    699.4 	   	 509.5 	   	 478.7 	  	  443.8 	   	 410.7 
Equity ratio (%)			   99.8 		    99.8 	   	 99.7 	   	 97.3 	   	 81.6 
Share capital			   85.0 	   	 90.0 	   	 90.0 	  	  90.0 	  	  90.0 
Distribution			   84.2 (1) 	   	 27.0 	   	 13.9 	  	  8.5 	   	 7.7 
 
(1)	 Board of Directors‘ proposal to the Annual General Meeting.
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Selected Data in US Dollars

Daetwyler Group (in USD millions)		  2007	 2006
Gross revenue		  1 202.7	 1 021.9 
  Year-on-year change (%)		  17.7 %	 11.1 %
	
Net revenue		  1 190.7	 1 011.9 
  Year-on-year change (%)		  17.7 %	 11.3 %
	
Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)		  167.5	 131.2 
  Margin (as % of net revenue)		  14.1 %	 13.0 %
	
Operating profit (EBIT)		  114.0	 75.0 
  Margin (as % of net revenue)		  9.6 %	 7.4 %
	
Profit for the year		  182.8	 63.7
  Margin (as % of net revenue)		  15.4 %	 6.3 %
	
Cash flow		  236.3	 120.0 
  Margin (as % of net revenue)		  19.8 %	 11.9 %
Free cash flow		  131.5	 19.9 
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment		  64.6	 61.2 
	
Total assets		  1 096.8	 910.0 
Equity		  777.2	 613.8 
  Equity ratio (%)		  70.9 %	 67.5 %
Cash, cash equivalents and money market investments		  406.7	 172.3 
Net cash surplus		  258.1	 58.6 
	
Number of employees		  4 340	 4 510 

 
Daetwyler Holding Inc. (in USD millions)		  2007	 2006

Finance and investment income		  186.7	 38.2 
Profit for the year		  184.8	 37.3 
Equity		  582.6	 424.4 
Equity ratio (%)		  99.8 %	 99.8 %
Share capital (1)		  70.8	 75.0 
Distribution 		  70.1(2)	 22.5 

 
Per share data (in USD) (3)		  2007	 2006

Earnings per bearer share ranking for dividend:	
  Continuing operations		  4.67	 3.60
  Discontinued operation		  7.21	 0.50
  Total earnings per bearer share ranking for dividend		  11.88	 4.10
Par value repayment/dividend per bearer share		  4.12(2)	 1.50
Distribution yield at 31 December		  6.5 %	 2.5 %

USD / CHF exchange rate used for both years: 1.2005 (average rate for 2007).

(1)	 CHF 77.0 million eligible for a dividend.
(2)	 Par value repayment, Board of Directors‘ proposal to the Annual General Meeting. For details, see page 109.	
(3)	 Prior year figures have been restated to reflect the share split on 6 July 2007.
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Selected Data in Euros

Daetwyler Group (in EUR millions)		  2007	 2006
Gross revenue		  878.5	 746.5 
  Year-on-year change (%)		  17.7 %	 11.1 %

Net revenue		  869.8	 739.2 
  Year-on-year change (%)		  17.7 %	 11.3 %

Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)		  122.4	 95.8 
  Margin (as % of net revenue)		  14.1 %	 13.0 %
	
Operating profit (EBIT)		  83.3	 54.8 
  Margin (as % of net revenue)		  9.6 %	 7.4 %

Profit for the year		  133.6	 46.5 
  Margin (as % of net revenue)		  15.4 %	 6.3 %

Cash flow		  172.6	 87.7 
  Equity ratio (%)		  19.8 %	 11.9 %
Free cash flow		  96.1	 14.5
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment		  47.2	 44.7 

Total assets		  801.2	 664.8 
Equity		  567.7	 448.4 
  Equity ratio (%)		  70.9 %	 67.5 %
Cash, cash equivalents and money market investments		  297.1	 125.8 
Net cash surplus		  188.5	 42.7 

Number of employees		  4 340	 4 510 
 
Daetwyler Holding Inc. (in EUR millions)		  2007	 2006

Finance and investment income		  136.4	 27.9 
Profit for the year		  135.0	 27.3 
Equity		  425.6	 310.0 
Equity ratio (%)		  99.8 %	 99.8 %
Share capital (1)		  51.7	 54.8 
Distribution 		  51.2(2)	 16.4 

Per share data (in EUR) (3)		  2007	 2006
Earnings per bearer share ranking for dividend:	
  Continuing operations		  3.41	 2.70
  Discontinued operation		  5.27	 0.40
  Total earnings per bearer share ranking for dividend		  8.68	 3.10
Par value repayment/dividend per bearer share		  3.01(2)	 1.10
Distribution yield at 31 December		  6.5 %	 2.5 %

EUR / CHF exchange rate used for both years: 1.64342 (average rate for 2007).	

(1)	 CHF 77.0 million eligible for a dividend.
(2)	 Par value repayment, Board of Directors‘ proposal to the Annual General Meeting. For details, see page 109.
(3)	 Prior year figures have been restated to reflect the share split on 6 July 2007.
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Share Information

Year ended 31 December			   2007 (5)	 2006	 2005	 2004	 2003

Share capital	 CHF millions		  85 	 90 	 90 	 90 	 90 
Eligible for a dividend	 CHF millions		  77 	 77 	 77 	 77	 77 

Number of shares
Bearer shares of CHF 5.– each		  (5)	 12 600 000 	 136 000 	 136 000 	 136 000 	 136 000 
Unissued shares			   1 600 000 	 26 000 	 26 000 	 26 000 	 26 000 
Bearer shares in issue			   11 000 000 	 110 000 	 110 000 	 110 000 	 110 000 
Registered shares of CHF 1.– each		 (5)	 22 000 000 	 220 000 	 220 000 	 220 000 	 220 000 

Market price (high / low)		  (1)

Bearer share - high	 CHF	 (2)	 94.45	 7 100 	 4 300 	 2 698 	 2 200 
Bearer share - low	 CHF	 (2)	 62.00	 4 210 	 2 500 	 1 970 	 1 620 

Trading volume
Number of shares			   1 845 789 	 22 310 	 38 819 	 22 423 	 9 955 
Value	 CHF millions		  144	  104 	  135 	  54 	  19 

Gross dividend
Bearer share	 CHF		  4.95 (3)	 175 	 90 	 55 	 50 
Registered share	 CHF		  0.99 (3)	 35 	 18 	 11	 10 

Group earnings per share		  (4)

Bearer share	 CHF		  14.27	  498 	  263 	  159 	  144 
Bearer share - diluted	 CHF		  14.27	  498 	  262 	  159 	  144 
Registered share	 CHF		  2.85	  100 	  53 	  32 	  29 

Group cash flow per share		  (4)

Bearer share	 CHF		  18.42	  935 	  794 	  586 	  560 
Registered share	 CHF		  3.68	  187 	  159 	  117 	  112 

Price/earnings ratio (average)			   5.50	  11 	  13 	  15 	  13 

Group net assets per share		  (4)

Bearer share	 CHF		   66 	 4 785 	 4 378 	 4 119 	 4 018 
Registered share	 CHF		   13 	  957 	  876 	  824 	  804 

Market capitalisation
Average for the year	 CHF millions		  1 204 	  871 	  524 	  359 	  294 
As % of equity			   119 	 118 	 78 	 57 	 47 
At 31 December	 CHF millions		  1 175 	 1 063 	 647 	 412 	 303 
As % of equity			   116 	 144 	 96 	 65 	 49 

The Articles of Association of Daetwyler Holding Inc. do not contain any opting out or opting up provisions 
pursuant to the Swiss Stock Exchange Act.
(1)	 �Swiss Stock Exchange (SWX).  (2)   Issued at a price of CHF 2 250.- in October 1986.  (3)   Par value repayment, 

Board of Directors‘ proposal to the Annual General Meeting.  (4)   As adjusted per share ranking for dividend.
(5)	 Starting in 2007, the data reflect the 100-for-1 share split on 6 July 2007.
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Dividend

	 Profit for the year.
	 Dividend in absolute terms and as a percentage of share capital eligible for a dividend (CHF 77 million).

*	 Profit distribution in the form of a par value repayment.

	 Daetwyler bearer share price.	 	 SPI index.	 *	 100-for-1 share split on 6 July 2007.

Dividend Performance

Share Price Performance

Daetwyler bearer share price (compared with the SPI index; basis: monthly highs)

2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007*	 2008

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

377

330

282

234

186

139

91

43

–5

–52

CHF %

7.7 8.5 13.9 27.0

84.2*

24.2
40.4

76.5

219.5

10 %	 11 %	 18 %	 35 %

240

210

180

150

120

90

60

30

0

CHF millions

22.1

2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007*
				    Proposal to 
				    the 2008 AGM



117Daetwyler Annual Report 2007

Shareholder Information

General Information

Financial year
Daetwyler Group: 1 January to 31 December
Daetwyler Holding Inc.: 1 January to 31 December

Incorporated
Daetwyler Inc.: 1915
Daetwyler Holding Inc.: 1958
publicly listed since 1986

Share trading
Bearer shares traded on the SWX Swiss Exchange

Ticker symbols
Security	 Security No.	 Investdata	 ISIN	 Common Code	 Reuters
Daetwyler 
bearer share	 3 048 677	 DAE	 CH003 048677 0	 XS030821700	 DAEZ

Taxable value set by the Swiss Federal Tax Administration at 31 December 2007
Bearer share: CHF 76.30

Important dates
2008
Annual General Meeting	 22 April 2008
Interim Report		  29 August 2008

2009
Annual Press Conference	 31 March 2009
Analyst Conference	 31 March 2009
Annual General Meeting	 28 April 2009

Annual General Meetings are held at 5.00 p.m. at the theater (uri), Tellspielhaus, Altdorf

Press office and investor relations
T	 +41 41 875 13 04
F	 +41 41 875 12 05
info@daetwyler.ch
www.daetwyler.ch

This Annual Report is also available in German and can be downloaded from our website at www.daetwyler.ch. 
In the event of any inconsistency, the German version will prevail.
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Daetwyler Group at 31 March 2008
Chief Executive Officer: Paul J. Haelg 
Chief Financial Officer: Silvio A. Magagna

Cables
Johannes Mueller

Daetwyler Cables
Unit of Daetwyler Switzerland Inc.
Gotthardstrasse 31
CH-6460 Altdorf
T	+41 41 875 11 22
F	+41 41 875 18 70
info.ch@daetwyler-cables.com
www.daetwyler-cables.com	

Daetwyler Kabel+Systeme GmbH
Lilienthalstasse 17
DE-85399 Hallbergmoos
T	+49 811 99 86 33 0
F	+49 811 99 86 33 30
info.de@daetwyler-cables.com
www.daetwyler-cables.com

Daetwyler Kabel+Systeme GmbH
Auf der Roos 4 – 12
DE-65795 Hattersheim
T	+49 6190 88 80 0
F	+49 6190 88 80 80
info.de@daetwyler-cables.com
www.daetwyler-cables.com

Daetwyler Kabel+Systeme GmbH
Austrian Branch
Tenschertstrasse 8
AT-1230 Vienna
T	+43 1 810 16 41 0
F	+43 1 810 16 41 35
info.at@daetwyler-cables.com
www.daetwyler-cables.com
	
Daetwyler (UK) Ltd
2 Marshall Road
Hillmead
GB-Swindon,Wiltshire SN5 5FZ
T	+44 1793 898 400
F	+44 1793 898 401
info@datwyler.co.uk
www.daetwyler-cables.com

Daetwyler (Thelma) 
Cables+Systems Pte Ltd
29 Tech Park Crescent
SG-638103 Singapore
T +65 6863 1166
F	+65 6897 8885
sales@datwyler.com.sg
www.daetwyler-cables.com

Daetwyler Cables+Systems  
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd
Building 16, No. 1 – 111,  
Kang Qiao Dong Road
Kang Qiao Industrial Zone, Pudong
CN-201319 Shanghai, P. R. China
T	+86 21 6813 0066
F	+86 21 6813 0298
info@datwyler-china.com
www.datwyler-china.com

Daetwyler (Suzhou)  
Cabling Systems Co. Ltd
Block 31, #15 Dong Fu Road
Suzhou Singapore Industrial Park
CN-215123 Suzhou, P. R. China
T	+86 512 6265 3600
F	+86 512 6265 3649
sales.harnessing@datwyler-china.com
www.datwyler-china.com

Rubber
Dirk Lambrecht

Daetwyler Rubber
Unit of Daetwyler Switzerland Inc.
Militaerstrasse 7
CH-6467 Schattdorf
T	+41 41 875 11 23
F	+41 41 875 15 46
info.ch@daetwyler-rubber.com
www.daetwyler-rubber.com	

Daetwyler Rubber Deutschland GmbH
Allerfeldstrasse 5
DE-31832 Springe
T	+49 5045 91 090
F	+49 5045 91 09 11
info.de@daetwyler-rubber.com
www.daetwyler-rubber.com	

Daetwyler Rubber France S.A.S.
2, ZA rue de la Forge Féret
FR-76520 Boos
T	+33 2 32 80 86 40
F	+33 2 35 80 26 90
contact.fr@daetwyler-rubber.com
www.daetwyler-rubber.com	

Daetwyler Rubber CZ s.r.o.
Polní 224
CZ-50401 Nový Bydžov
T	+420 495 490 333
F	+420 495 491 251 
info.cz@daetwyler-rubber.com
www.daetwyler-rubber.com


